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1.
GENERAL

The Company

Unique Engineering and Construction Public Company Limited (“the Company”) was incorporated as a limited company in Thailand on July 29, 1994 and was transformed to be the Public Company on June 23, 2005.  Subsequently on March 30, 2007, the Company’s ordinary shares have been approved to be a listed security in the Stock Exchange of Thailand. The Company engaged in the business of construction, land development and construction of real estate for sales. The registered office address of the Company is located at 200 Jasmine International Tower, 15th Floor, Moo 4, Chaengwattana Road, Tumbol Pakkred, Amphur Pakkred, Nonthaburi 11120, Thailand.

The major shareholder of the Company as at December 31, 2015 and 2014 is Suviwattanachai Group who owned 35.3% and 32.1% of the Company’s authorized share capital, respectively.

Subsidiary Companies 
	
	
	Country of
	
	Date of
	
	Type of
	
	Percentage of

	Company’s Name
	
	Registration
	
	incorporated
	
	Business
	
	Ownership

	Unique Real Estate and Development Co., Ltd.
	
	Thailand
	
	September 1, 1993
	
	Construction, land development and construction of real estate for sales
	
	99.99

	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	UQ-SRC Joint Venture Co., Ltd.
	
	Thailand
	
	May 12, 2011
	
	Bidding certain projects in the future.  Up to the present, this company has not yet started any commercial operations
	
	89.99

	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	Unique Machinery Company Limited
	
	Thailand
	
	October 3, 2012
	
	Leasing service of machinery
	
	99.99

	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	Unique Foundation Company Limited
	
	Thailand
	
	October 8, 2012
	
	Manufacture of materials to be used in the construction.
	
	99.99

	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	Unique Tunnelling Company Limited
	
	Thailand
	
	November 2, 2012
	
	Construction
	
	99.99

	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	Unique Plus Technology Co., Ltd.
	
	Thailand
	
	December 26, 2012
	
	Service of infrastructure and telecommunication related works. Up to the present, this company has not yet started any commercial operations.
	
	99.99

	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	Unique Built Co., Ltd.
	
	Thailand
	
	March 14, 2013
	
	Building construction 
	
	99.99


	
	
	Country of
	
	Date of
	
	Type of
	
	Percentage of

	Company’s Name
	
	Registration
	
	incorporated
	
	Business
	
	Ownership

	Golden Estate Plus Co., Ltd.
	
	Thailand
	
	March 22, 2013
	
	Selling of sand
	
	99.99

	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	Unique System Co., Ltd.
	
	Thailand
	
	March 22, 2013
	
	Service of infrastructure and system
	
	99.99

	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	Unique Innovation Co., Ltd.
	
	Thailand
	
	April 17, 2013
	
	Produce concrete readymix and precast concrete
	
	99.99

	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	Unique Prudence Company Limited
	
	Thailand
	
	July 10, 2013
	
	Bidding and valuation service
	
	99.99

	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	Unique Metal Company Limited
	
	Thailand
	
	September 4, 2013
	
	Steel fabrication service
	
	99.97

	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	Unique Practiga Company Limited
	
	Thailand
	
	September 4, 2013
	
	Assembly service
	
	99.97

	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	Unique Exploration Company Limited
	
	Thailand
	
	September 4, 2013
	
	Survey service.
	
	99.97

	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	Unique Equipment Service Company Limited
	
	Thailand
	
	October 3, 2013
	
	Repairing and maintenance of machinery and equipment service
	
	99.97

	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	Unique Masters Company Limited
	
	Thailand
	
	October 3, 2013
	
	Engineering and architectural services. Up to the present, this company has not yet started any commercial operations
	
	99.97

	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	Sun Technology and Construction Co., Ltd.
	
	Thailand
	
	May 19, 2014
	
	Bidding certain projects in the future. Up to the present, this company has not yet started any commercial operations
	
	99.99


Joint Operations

	
	
	Country of
	
	Date of
	
	Type of
	
	Proportionate of

	Entity’s Name
	
	Registration
	
	incorporated
	
	Business
	
	Share (%)

	Unique-Chun Wo Joint Venture
	
	Thailand
	
	December 19, 2008
	
	Construction for State Railway of Thailand Commuter Train Project (Red Line) Bang Sue - Taling Chan Section with the State Railway of Thailand
	
	Chun Wo Construction & Engineering Co., Ltd. (share 15%) and the Company (share 85%)


	
	
	Country of
	
	Date of
	
	Type of
	
	Proportionate of

	Entity’s Name
	
	Registration
	
	incorporated
	
	Business
	
	Share (%)

	UN – SG Joint Venture
	
	Thailand
	
	October 5, 2010
	
	Construction of veer water from the east Chaopraya-Bangpra reservoir, Chonburi province with the Royal Irrigation Department
	
	Summit Grade Ltd., Part. (share 50%) and the Company (share 50%)

	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	SH – UN Joint Venture
	
	Thailand
	
	November 17, 2010
	
	Construction for Contract 3: Elevated Civil Works: Tao Pun – Tha Phra Section of the MRT Blue Line Extension Project: Hua Lamphong – Bang Khae and Bang Sue – Tha Phra Sections with Mass Rapid Transit Authority of Thailand
	
	Sinohydro Corporation Limited (share 50%) and the Company (share 50%)

	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	ITD – UNIQUE Joint Venture
	
	Thailand
	
	November 25, 2010
	
	Construction for Klong – Yai Port in Trad Province with the Marine Department
	
	Italian-Thai Development Public Company Limited (share 60%) and the Company (share 40%)

	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	S U Joint Venture
	
	Thailand
	
	September 13, 2012
	
	Construction for State Railway of Thailand Commuter Train Project (Red Line) Contract 1: Civil Works for Bang Sue Grand Station and Depots
	
	Sino-Thai Engineering and Construction Public Company Limited (share 60%) and the Company (share 40%)

	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	PU Joint Venture
	
	Thailand
	
	January 10, 2014
	
	Up to present, this joint venture has not yet started any commercial operations
	
	Phraethumrongvit Co., Ltd. (share 10%) and the Company (share 90%)

	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	UN-SH-CH Joint Venture
	
	Thailand
	
	March 27, 2015
	
	Construction for State Railway of Thailand Commuter Train Project Green Line (North) Contract 2: Civil Works for Saphan Mai – Khu Khot Section
	
	Shinohydro Corporation Limited (share 25%), China Harbour Engineering Company Limited (share 25%) and the Company (share 50%)


The registered office of these subsidiaries and joint ventures (except ITD-UNIQUE Joint Venture) is located at 200 Jasmine International Tower, 15th Floor, Moo 4, Chaengwattana Road, Tumbol Pakkred, Amphur Pakkred, Nonthaburi 11120, Thailand.

The registered office address of ITD-UNIQUE Joint Venture is located at 2034/132-161 Italthai Tower, 37th Floor, New Petchburi Road, Bangkapi, Huaykwang, Bangkok 10310, Thailand.

The Company and its subsidiary companies are referred to as “the Unique Group”.

2.
BASIS FOR PREPARATION OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

AND PRINCIPLES OF CONSOLIDATION
a)
The statutory financial statements are prepared in Thai Baht and in the Thai language in conformity with Thai Financial Reporting Standards.  Accordingly, the consolidated and separate financial statements are intended solely to present the financial position, financial performance and cash flows in accordance with Thai Financial Reporting Standards. 

The accompanying financial statements are prepared under the historical cost convention except for those specified in the notes to the financial statements.

For the convenience of the readers, an English translation of the financial statements has been prepared from the Thai language statutory financial statements, which are issued solely for domestic financial reporting purposes.

b)
The consolidated financial statements comprise the financial statements of the Company and its subsidiary companies.

Subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the Unique Group. The Unique Group controls an entity when it is exposed to, or has rights to, variable returns from its involvement with the entity and has the ability to affect those returns through its power over the entity. The financial statements of subsidiaries are included in the consolidated financial statements from the date on which control commences until the date on which control ceases.

Loss of Control

When the Unique Group loses control over a subsidiary, it derecognizes the assets and liabilities of the subsidiary, and any related non-controlling interests and other components of equity. Any gain or loss on loss of control over a subsidiary is recognized in profit or loss. Any interest retained in the former subsidiary is measured at fair value when control is lost.

Joint Arrangements

The Company applies TFRS 11 “Joint Arrangements” which became effective for fiscal years beginning on or after January 1, 2015.

TFRS 11 “Joint Arrangements” supersedes TAS 31 (Revised 2012) “Interests in Joint Ventures”. This standard requires an entity investing in any other entity to determine whether the entity and other investors have joint control in the investment. When joint control exists, there is deems to be a joint arrangement and the entity then needs to apply judgement to assess whether the joint arrangement is a joint operation or a joint venture and to account for the interest in the investment in a manner appropriate to the type of joint arrangement. If it is a joint operation, the entity is to recognize its shares of assets, liabilities, revenue and expenses of the joint operation in proportion to its interest, in its separate financial statements. If it is a joint venture, the entity is to account for its investment in the joint venture using the equity method in the financial statements in which the equity method is applied or the consolidated financial statements (if any), and at cost in the separate financial statements.

The management of the Company determined that the Company has 7 investments in jointly controlled entities that are joint operations (between the Company and other joint operators) in accordance with this standard. The Company, therefore, changed the method used to account for those investment from the proportionate consolidation method in the consolidated financial statements and the cost method in the separate financial statements, to recognize the assets, liabilities, revenue and expenses related to the Company’s interest in the joint operations in both the consolidated financial statements and separate financial statements. The Company restated the prior period’s financial statements, presented as comparative information, to reflect the effect of the change. The cumulative effect of the change has been separately presented in the statements of changes in equity. This change in accounting policy has no impact on the consolidated financial statements.

The amounts of adjustments affecting the separate statements of financial position as at January 1, 2014 and December 31, 2014 are summarized below.

	
	
	In Million Baht

	
	
	January 1, 2014
	
	December 31, 2014

	Increase (decrease) in current assets
	
	784
	
	(981)

	Increase in non-current assets
	
	411
	
	624

	Increase (decrease) in current liabilities
	
	983
	
	(632)

	Increase in non-current liabilities
	
	29
	
	23

	Increase in unappropriated retained earnings
	
	183
	
	252

	Increase in total equity
	
	183
	
	252


The amounts of adjustments affecting the separate statement of comprehensive income for the year ended December 31, 2014 are summarized below.

	
	
	In Million Baht

	Increase in total revenues
	
	
	
	1,102

	Increase in total expenses
	
	
	
	1,033

	Increase in profit for the year
	
	
	
	69

	Increase in basic earnings per share (In Baht)
	
	
	
	0.08


The accompanying consolidated financial statements included the accounts of the Company and its subsidiary companies as follows:

	 
	Proportionate of Share (%)

	
	
	2015
	
	2014

	Subsidiary companies
	
	
	
	

	Unique Real Estate and Development Co., Ltd.
	
	99.99
	
	99.99

	
	
	
	
	

	UQ-SRC Joint Venture Co., Ltd.
	
	89.99
	
	89.99

	
	
	
	
	

	Unique Machinery Company Limited
	
	99.99
	
	99.99

	
	
	
	
	

	Unique Foundation Company Limited
	
	99.99
	
	99.99

	
	
	
	
	

	Unique Tunnelling Company Limited
	
	99.99
	
	99.99

	
	
	
	
	

	Unique Plus Technology Co., Ltd.
	
	99.99
	
	99.99

	
	
	
	
	

	Unique Built Co., Ltd.
	
	99.99
	
	99.99

	
	
	
	
	

	Golden Estate Plus Co., Ltd.
	
	99.99
	
	99.99

	
	
	
	
	

	Unique System Co., Ltd.
	
	99.99
	
	99.99

	
	
	
	
	

	Unique Innovation Co., Ltd.
	
	99.99
	
	99.99

	
	
	
	
	

	Unique Prudence Company Limited
	
	99.99
	
	99.99

	
	
	
	
	

	Unique Metal Company Limited
	
	99.97
	
	99.97

	
	
	
	
	

	Unique Practiga Company Limited
	
	99.97
	
	99.97

	
	
	
	
	

	Unique Exploration Company Limited
	
	99.97
	
	99.97


	
	Proportionate of Share (%)

	
	
	2015
	
	2014

	
	
	
	
	

	Unique Masters Company Limited
	
	99.97
	
	99.97

	
	
	
	
	

	Unique Equipment Service Company Limited
	
	99.97
	
	99.97

	
	
	
	
	

	Sun Technology and Construction Co., Ltd.
	
	99.99
	
	99.99

	
	
	
	
	

	Joint Operations
	
	
	
	

	Chun Wo Construction & Engineering Co., Ltd. 
	
	
	
	

	and Unique Engineering and Construction Public Company Limited 
	
	
	
	

	(the registered name is “Unique-Chun Wo Joint Venture”)
	
	85.00
	
	85.00

	
	
	
	
	

	Summit Grade Ltd., Part. and Unique Engineering and Construction Public 
	
	
	
	

	Company Limited (the registered name is “UN-SG Joint Venture”)
	
	50.00
	
	50.00

	
	
	
	
	

	Sinohydro Corporation Limited and Unique Engineering and Construction Public
	
	
	
	

	Company Limited (the registered name is “SH-UN Joint Venture”)
	
	50.00
	
	50.00

	
	
	
	
	

	Italian – Thai Development Public Company Limited 
	
	
	
	

	and Unique Engineering and Construction Public Company Limited 
	
	
	
	

	(the registered name is “ITD-UNIQUE Joint Venture”)
	
	40.00
	
	40.00

	
	
	
	
	

	Sino-Thai Engineering and Construction Public Company Limited 
	
	
	
	

	and Unique Engineering and Construction Public Company Limited 
	
	
	
	

	(the registered name is “S U Joint Venture”)
	
	40.00
	
	40.00

	
	
	
	
	

	Phraethumrongvit Co., Ltd. and Unique Engineering
	
	
	
	

	and Construction Public Company Limited 
	
	
	
	

	(the registered name is “PU Joint Venture”)
	
	90.00
	
	90.00

	
	
	
	
	

	Sinohydro Corporation Limited, China Harbour Engineering Company Limited and
	
	
	
	

	and Unique Engineering and Construction Public Company Limited 
	
	
	
	

	(the registered name is “UN-SH-CH Joint Venture”)
	
	50.00
	
	         -


Significant transactions among the Unique Group have been eliminated in the consolidated financial statements. 

3.
SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash on hand is kept for general use within the Unique Group.  Cash equivalents are savings deposits and current accounts, highly liquid investment that are readily convertible to known amount of cash and that are subject to an insignificant risk of change in value. 

Short-term Investments

Investments in mutual fund are valued at fair value. The change in fair value will be recognized in profit or loss for the year.

Accounts Receivable and Allowance for Doubtful Accounts

Accounts receivable are carried at original invoice amount net of allowance for doubtful accounts.  Bad debts are written off when identified.

The Unique Group provides an allowance for doubtful accounts equal to the estimated collection losses that may be incurred in the collection of all receivables.  The estimated losses are based on historical collection experience and a review of the current status of the existing receivables.
Inventory Valuation

The Unique Group values its inventories at the lower of cost and net realizable value by the following methods:

	Construction-in-progress - real estate project
	-
	Cost method (comprises the costs of land, materials, labor, contractor charges, services, related interest charges and overheads) 

	
	
	

	Construction-in-progress - construction projects
	-
	Cost method (comprises the costs of materials, labor, contractor charges, services, related interest charges and overheads)

	
	
	

	Construction materials
	-
	At cost, first-in, first-out method


Receivable under Finance Lease Agreement

Receivable under finance lease contracts are carried at outstanding amount, net of unearned finance income less allowance for doubtful accounts, if any.
Investments in Subsidiary Companies
Investments in subsidiary companies are stated under the cost method of accounting in the separate financial statements.
Property, Plant and Equipment and Depreciation and Depletion
Land is stated at cost net of allowance for loss on impairment. Plant and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and depletion and allowance for loss on impairment. When assets are sold or retired, their costs and accumulated depreciations and depletions are eliminated from the accounts and any gain or loss resulting from these transactions are included in the statement of comprehensive income.

The Unique Group depreciates its plant and equipment by the straight-line method over the following estimated useful lives:

	
	Years

	Buildings and improvements
	5, 10, 20

	Machinery and equipment
	5, 10

	Furniture, fixtures and office equipment
	5

	Vehicles
	5


Sand pits are stated at cost less accumulated depletion based on the physical unit-of-production method.

Intangible Assets

Intangible assets that are acquired by the Unique Group are stated at cost less accumulated amortization and allowance for loss on impairment (if any).
Amortization is charged to the statement of comprehensive income on a straight-line basis over the estimated useful lives of the intangible assets, unless such lives are indefinite.  Intangible assets with an indefinite useful life are not amortized but are systematically tested for impairment at each statement of financial position date. The estimated useful lives are as follows:

	
	
	Years

	
	
	

	Software licenses
	
	3 and 5


Impairment of Assets
The Unique Group reviews the impairment of assets whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the recoverable amount (the higher of asset’s selling price or value in use) of assets is below the carrying amount.  The review is made for individual assets or for the cash-generating unit.

If the carrying value of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount, the Unique Group recognizes the impairment losses by reducing the carrying value of the asset to its recoverable amount and recording the devaluation in statements of comprehensive income or reducing revaluation increment in assets in case that those assets were previously revalued.  The reversal of impairment losses recognized in prior years is recorded as part of other income or as a revaluation increment in assets, when there is an indication that the impairment losses recognized for the assets no longer exist or are decreased.  Such a reversal should not exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined (net of the associated depreciation or amortization).

Provision

A provision is recognized when the Unique Group has a present legal or constructive obligation as a result of a past event and it is probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation, and a reliable estimate of the amount can be made.  A provision is reviewed at the statement of financial position date and adjusted to reflect the current best estimate. Where the effect of the time value of money is material, the amount of a provision is the present value of the expenditures expected to be required to settle the obligation.

Provisions for Employee Benefits
Employee Retirement Benefit
As a result of TAS 19 (revised 2014), the Unique Group has changed its accounting policy with respect to the basis for determining the income or expense related to defined benefit and actuarial gains or losses recognition, which requires to be recognized immediately in other comprehensive income, and no longer permits to be recognized in profit or loss the Unique Group had applied in previous years. Such change affected to the consolidated and separate statements of comprehensive income for the year ended December 31, 2014 as follows:

	
	In Thousand Baht

	
	Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income
	
	Separate Statement of Comprehensive Income

	
	As Previously Reported
	
	Adjustment
	
	As Restated
	
	As Previously Reported
	
	Adjustment
	
	Adjustment from TFRS 11

(Note 2)
	
	As Restated

	Profit for the year
	502,272
	
	7,200
	
	509,472
	
	309,457
	
	1,038
	
	68,431
	
	378,926

	Total other comprehensive losses for the year
	          -
	
	(7,200)
	
	(7,200)
	
	          -
	
	(1,038)
	
	          -
	
	(1,038)

	Total comprehensive income for the year
	502,272
	
	          -
	
	502,272
	
	309,457
	
	          -
	
	68,431
	
	377,888

	Basic earnings per share (In Baht)
	0.589
	
	0.009
	
	0.598
	
	0.363
	
	0.001
	
	0.081
	
	0.445


The Unique Group’s employee retirement benefit obligation is calculated by estimating the amount of future benefit that employees have earned in return for their service in the current and prior periods by the projected unit credit method determined by a professionally qualified independent actuary. The projected unit credit method considers each period of service as giving rise to an additional unit of benefit entitlement and measures each unit separately to build up the final obligation. Past service costs and gains or losses on the curtailment are recognized immediately in profit or loss. The Unique Group recognizes gains or losses on the settlement of pension benefits when the curtailment or settlement occurs. Actuarial gains or losses are recognized immediately to other comprehensive income. The defined benefit obligations are measured at the present value of estimated future cash flows using a discount rate that is similar to the government bonds.

Other Long-term Employee Benefit
The Unique Group’s net obligation in respect of long-term employee benefit (other than employee retirement benefit plan) is the amount of future benefit that the eligible employees have earned in return for their service in the current and prior periods; that benefit is discounted to determine its present value. In the statement of financial position, the obligations represent the present value of the other long-term employee benefit. 

Use of Judgements and Estimates
In order to prepare financial statements in conformity with Thai Financial Reporting Standards in Thailand, the management needs to make estimates and set assumptions that affect income, expenditure, assets and liabilities in order to disclose information on the valuation of assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities.  Actual outcomes may, therefore, differ from the estimates used.

The estimates and underlying assumptions used in the preparation of these financial statements are reviewed on an ongoing basis.  Revisions to accounting estimates are recognized in the period in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects only that period or in the period of the revision and future periods if the revision affects both current and future periods.

Judgements

Information about judgements made in applying accounting policies that have the most significant effects on the amounts recognized in the financial statements consists of the following:

· Classification of the joint arrangements
· Consolidation: whether the Unique Group has de facto control over an investee

· Lease classification

Assumptions and estimation uncertainties

Information about significant areas of estimation uncertainties that have a significant risk of resulting in material adjustments to the amounts recognized in the financial statements consists of the following:

· Percentage of completion

· Current and deferred taxation

· Utilization of tax losses

· Key assumptions used in discounted cash flow projections

· Measurement of provision for employee retirement benefit

· Provisions and contingencies

· Valuation of financial instruments

Revenue Recognition and Expenses
The Unique Group recognizes revenue from construction contracts by the percentage of completion method.  The percentage of completion is computed based on the estimation of the project engineer together with the consideration of actual cost of work performed and the estimated total cost of the project.  The estimated total cost is determined by the Unique Group’s project engineers or its responsible person, which is subject to change.  The related actual costs are taken up as incurred on an accrual basis. Expected loss on each project is provided and charged as expense in the period when the estimated total costs of the project exceed its total contracted income.

Revenue from the sale of real estate is recognized in the statements of comprehensive income when the significant risks and rewards of ownership have been transferred to the buyer.  No revenue is recognized if there are significant uncertainties regarding recovery of the consideration due, associated costs, the probable return of goods or the continuing management involvement with the goods.

Revenue from the sale of goods is recognized in the statement of comprehensive income when the significant risks and rewards of ownership have been transferred to the buyer. No revenue is recognized if there are significant uncertainties regarding recovery of the condition due, associated costs, the probable return of goods or the continuing management involvement with the goods.

Service income is recognized as services are provided on an accrual basis.

Interest income is recognized on a time proportion basis that reflects the effective yield on the asset.
Other income is recorded based on an accrual basis.

Expenses are recorded based on an accrual basis.

Income from Finance Lease Contracts

The Company has recognized the income by using the effective interest rate method.

Repair and Maintenance

Expenditures on repair and maintenance are charged to expense at the expenditures are incurred. Expenditures of a capital nature are added to the related plant and equipment.

Finance Lease
Leases in terms of which the Unique Group substantially assumes all the risk and rewards of ownership are classified as finance leases.  Property, plant and equipment acquired by way of finance leases are capitalized at the lower of its fair value and the present value of the minimum lease payments at the inception of the lease, less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses.  Lease payments are apportioned between the finance charges and reduction of the lease liability so as to achieve a constant rate of interest on the remaining balance of the liability.  Finance charges are charged directly to the statement of comprehensive income. 

Operating Lease

Leases of assets under which all the risks and rewards of ownership are effectively retained by the lessor are classified as operating leases.  Lease payments under an operating lease are recognized as an expense in the statement of comprehensive income on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

Finance Costs

Interest expenses and similar costs are charged to the statement of comprehensive income for the period in which they are incurred, except to the extent that they are capitalized as being directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of an asset which necessarily takes a substantial period of time to be prepared for its intended use or sale.  The interest component of finance lease payments is recognized in the statement of comprehensive income using the effective interest rate method.

Foreign Currency Transactions

Foreign currency transactions during the year are translated into Baht at the rates prevailing at the date of transactions.  Assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies at the statement of financial position date are translated into Baht at the prevailing bank rates at that date except foreign currency liabilities being covered by forward exchange contract will be translated into Baht at such forward exchange rate.  Gains or losses on translation are credited or charged to current operations.  

Income Taxes

The income tax charge is based on profit for the period and considers deferred income taxation.  Deferred income taxes reflect the net tax effects of temporary differences between the tax basis of an asset or liability and its carrying amount in the statement of financial position.  Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are measured using the tax rates expected to apply to taxable income in the periods in which those temporary differences are expected to be recovered or settled.  The measurement of deferred income tax assets and deferred income tax liabilities reflects the tax consequences that would follow from the manner in which the Unique Group expects, at the statement of financial position date, to recover or settle the carrying amount of their assets and liabilities.

Deferred income tax assets are recognized when it is probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available against which the deferred income tax assets can be utilized.  At each statement of financial position date, the Unique Group re-assesses unrecognized deferred income tax assets.  The Unique Group recognizes a previously unrecognized deferred income tax asset to the extent that it has become probable that future taxable profit will allow the deferred income tax asset to be recovered.  The Unique Group conversely reduces the carrying amount of a deferred income tax asset to the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow the benefit of part or all of these deferred income tax assets to be utilized.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset if there is a legally enforceable right to offset current tax assets against current tax liabilities, and they relate to income taxes levied by the same tax authority on the same taxable entity, or on different tax entities, but they intend to settle current tax liabilities and assets on a net basis or their tax assets and liabilities will be realised simultaneously.

Basic Earnings per Share Attributable to Owners of The Parent 
Basic earnings per share attributable to owners of the parent are determined by dividing the profit for the year attributable to owners of the parent by the weighted average number of shares outstanding during the year.
4.
TRANSACTIONS WITH RELATED PARTIES

A portion of the Company’s assets, liabilities, revenues and expenses arose from transactions with related companies.  These companies are related through common shareholdings and/or directorships. 

Significant transactions with the related parties for each of the years ended December 31, 2015 and 2014 are as follows:

	
	
	
	In Thousand Baht

	
	
	
	Consolidated Financial statements
	
	Separate Financial Statements

	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	2014

	
	Relationship
	
	2015
	
	2014
	
	2015
	
	(Restated)


	Revenues from 
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	construction services
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	


	Unique Tunnelling
	Subsidiary
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	Company Limited
	company
	
	-
	
	-
	
	9,111
	
	37,338

	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	Unique Foundation
	Subsidiary
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	Company Limited
	company
	
	-
	
	-
	
	82,230
	
	374,800

	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	Unique Innovation Co., Ltd.
	Subsidiary
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	
	company
	
	-
	
	-
	
	-
	
	122,717

	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	


	
	
	
	In Thousand Baht

	
	
	
	Consolidated Financial statements
	
	Separate Financial Statements

	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	2014

	
	Relationship
	
	2015
	
	2014
	
	2015
	
	(Restated)

	Other income
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	Unique Foundation
	Subsidiary
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	Company Limited
	company
	
	-
	
	-
	
	5,760
	
	2,594

	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	Unique Tunnelling
	Subsidiary
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	Company Limited
	company
	
	-
	
	-
	
	8,187
	
	10,691

	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	Unique Innovation Co., Ltd.
	Subsidiary
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	
	company
	
	-
	
	-
	
	3,528
	
	799

	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	Golden Estate Plus Co., Ltd.
	Subsidiary
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	
	company
	
	-
	
	-
	
	39
	
	50

	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	Unique Machinery
	Subsidiary
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	Company Limited
	company
	
	-
	
	-
	
	828
	
	1,008

	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	Unique Practiga
	Subsidiary
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	Company Limited
	company
	
	-
	
	-
	
	8,536
	
	876

	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	Unique Metal 
	Subsidiary
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	Company Limited
	company
	
	-
	
	-
	
	7,601
	
	4,687

	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	Unique Equipment Service
	Subsidiary
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	Company Limited
	company
	
	-
	
	-
	
	309
	
	114

	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	Unique Built Co., Ltd.
	Subsidiary
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	
	company
	
	-
	
	-
	
	3,040
	
	7,997

	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	


	Cost of construction
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	services
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	Work Team Management
	Related
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	Co., Ltd.
	Company
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	
	(Same shareholder)
	
	-
	
	15,230
	
	-
	
	-

	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	Unique Foundation
	Subsidiary
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	Company Limited
	company
	
	-
	
	-
	
	580,466
	
	521,437

	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	Golden Estate Plus Co., Ltd.
	Subsidiary
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	
	company
	
	-
	
	-
	
	61,211
	
	67,897

	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	Unique Machinery
	Subsidiary
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	Company Limited
	company
	
	-
	
	-
	
	353,643
	
	709,310

	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	Unique Innovation Co., Ltd.
	Subsidiary
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	
	company
	
	-
	
	-
	
	823,233
	
	82,821


	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	


	
	
	
	In Thousand Baht

	
	
	
	Consolidated Financial statements
	
	Separate Financial Statements

	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	2014

	
	Relationship
	
	2015
	
	2014
	
	2015
	
	(Restated)

	Unique System Co., Ltd.
	Subsidiary
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	
	company
	
	-
	
	-
	
	88,694
	
	14,442


	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	Unique Built Co., Ltd.
	Subsidiary
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	
	company
	
	-
	
	-
	
	351,373
	
	94,721

	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	Unique Prudence 
	Subsidiary
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	Company Limited
	company
	
	-
	
	-
	
	11,994
	
	10,222

	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	Unique Exploration 
	Subsidiary
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	Company Limited
	company
	
	-
	
	-
	
	49,952
	
	25,079

	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	Unique Practiga 
	Subsidiary
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	Company Limited
	company
	
	-
	
	-
	
	458,792
	
	125,887

	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	Unique Metal 
	Subsidiary
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	Company Limited
	company
	
	-
	
	-
	
	434,366
	
	406,514

	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	Unique Equipment
	Subsidiary
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	Service Company Limited
	company
	
	-
	
	-
	
	49,943
	
	32,277

	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	Unique Tunnelling
	Subsidiary
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	Company Limited
	company
	
	-
	
	-
	
	62,594
	
	126,982

	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	Rental and other expenses
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	Unique Real Estate and
	Subsidiary
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	Development Co., Ltd.
	company
	
	-
	
	-
	
	14,398
	
	15,214

	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	
	Related company
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	Chairatchakij Company Limited
	(Same directorship)
	
	3,643
	
	871
	
	-
	
	-


	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	Unique Machinery
	Subsidiary
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	Company Limited
	company
	
	-
	
	-
	
	-
	
	20

	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	Unique Foundation
	Subsidiary
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	Company Limited
	company
	
	-
	
	-
	
	-
	
	3

	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	Unique Innovation Co., Ltd.
	Subsidiary
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	
	company
	
	-
	
	-
	
	19
	
	-

	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	Insurance expense
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	ThaiSri Insurance Public
	Related company 
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	Company Limited
	(Same directorship)
	
	30,227
	
	25,085
	
	16,986
	
	13,565


The monetary management benefit expenses for each of the years ended December 31, 2015 and 2014 are as follows:

	
	
	In Thousand Baht

	
	
	Consolidated Financial Statements
	
	Separate Financial Statements

	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	2014

	Description
	
	2015
	
	2014
	
	2015
	
	(Restated)

	Salaries
	
	18,971
	
	19,835
	
	17,051
	
	17,633

	Bonus
	
	4,975
	
	5,540
	
	4,875
	
	5,290

	Employee retirement benefit
	
	1,296
	
	1,574
	
	1,177
	
	1,106

	Meeting allowances
	
	1,125
	
	1,500
	
	1,125
	
	1,500

	Contribution to the Group’s provident fund
	
	380
	
	366
	
	341
	
	330

	Others
	
	757
	
	751
	
	508
	
	497

	Total
	
	27,504
	
	29,566
	
	25,077
	
	26,356


Balances with related parties as at December 31, 2015 and 2014 are as follows:

	
	Consolidated Financial Statements (In Thousand Baht)

	
	Balance as at
	
	
	
	
	
	Balance as at

	
	December 31,
	
	
	
	
	
	December 31,

	
	2014
	
	Increase
	
	Decrease
	
	2015

	Trade account payables
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	Work Team Management Co., Ltd.
	66,020
	
	-
	
	30,497
	
	35,523

	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	Accrued expenses
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	Chairachakij Company Limited
	300
	
	3,898
	
	2,188
	
	2,010

	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	Retention payable to contractor
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	Work Team Management Co., Ltd.
	4,990
	
	-
	
	4,990
	
	-


	
	Separate Financial Statements (In Thousand Baht)

	
	Balance as at
	
	
	
	
	
	

	
	December 31,
	
	
	
	
	
	Balance as at

	
	2014
	
	
	
	
	
	December 31,

	
	(Restated)
	
	Increase
	
	Decrease
	
	2015

	Trade account receivables
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	Unique Foundation Company Limited
	675,152
	
	82,230
	
	17,021
	
	740,361

	Unique Tunnelling Company Limited
	88,678
	
	9,111
	
	25,916
	
	71,873

	Unique Innovation Co., Ltd.
	131,307
	
	-
	
	59,435
	
	71,872

	Total trade account receivables
	895,137
	
	91,341
	
	102,372
	
	884,106

	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	Other receivables
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	Unique Tunnelling Company Limited
	17,965
	
	8,760
	
	521
	
	26,204

	Unique Built Co., Ltd.
	8,557
	
	3,253
	
	8,352
	
	3,458

	Unique Metal Company Limited
	5,001
	
	8,133
	
	5,859
	
	7,275

	Unique Innovation Co., Ltd.
	2,552
	
	3,775
	
	1,877
	
	4,450

	Unique Foundation Company Limited
	3,952
	
	6,158
	
	1,261
	
	8,849

	Golden Estate Plus Co., Ltd.
	101
	
	42
	
	23
	
	120

	Unique Machinery Company Limited
	643
	
	1,046
	
	476
	
	1,213

	Unique Practiga Company Limited
	771
	
	9,133
	
	2,081
	
	7,823

	Unique Equipment Service Company Limited
	91
	
	331
	
	95
	
	327

	Total other receivables
	39,633
	
	40,631
	
	20,545
	
	59,719

	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	


	Total
	934,770
	
	131,972
	
	122,917
	
	943,825


	
	Separate Financial Statements (In Thousand Baht)

	
	Balance as at
	
	
	
	
	
	

	
	December 31,
	
	
	
	
	
	Balance as at

	
	2014
	
	
	
	
	
	December 31,

	
	(Restated)
	
	Increase
	
	Decrease
	
	2015

	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	Advance payments to
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	Unique Machinery Company Limited
	316,018
	
	26,351
	
	1,123
	
	341,246

	Unique Foundation Company Limited
	254,947
	
	195,639
	
	2,304
	
	448,282

	Golden Estate Plus Co., Ltd.
	233,077
	
	118,480
	
	25,564
	
	325,993

	Unique Metal Company Limited
	186,480
	
	94,477
	
	172
	
	280,785

	Unique Practiga Company Limited
	135,754
	
	43,383
	
	18
	
	179,119

	Unique Tunnelling Company Limited
	44,583
	
	22,506
	
	9
	
	67,080

	Unique Built Co., Ltd.
	43,675
	
	89,947
	
	2
	
	133,620

	Unique Exploration Company Limited
	30,101
	
	27,837
	
	-
	
	57,938

	Unique System Co., Ltd.
	29,308
	
	7,116
	
	-
	
	36,424

	Unique Equipment Service Company Limited
	24,228
	
	2,395
	
	2,052
	
	24,571

	Unique Prudence Company Limited
	9,308
	
	4,000
	
	-
	
	13,308

	Unique Innovation Co., Ltd.
	2,582
	
	437,753
	
	321,613
	
	118,722

	Unique Plus Technology Co., Ltd.
	1,511
	
	4,489
	
	6,000
	
	-

	Sun Technology and Construction Co., Ltd.
	302
	
	24,698
	
	25,000
	
	-

	UQ-SRC Joint Venture Co., Ltd.
	1
	
	-
	
	-
	
	1

	Total
	1,311,875
	
	1,099,071
	
	383,857
	
	2,027,089

	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	Trade account payables
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	Unique Foundation Company Limited
	410,423
	
	580,466
	
	379,134
	
	611,755

	Unique Tunnelling Company Limited
	124,245
	
	62,594
	
	56,179
	
	130,660

	Unique Machinery Company Limited
	230,723
	
	353,643
	
	454,909
	
	129,457

	Unique Innovation Co., Ltd.
	28,055
	
	845,094
	
	249,906
	
	623,243

	Golden Estate Plus Co., Ltd.
	73,631
	
	61,211
	
	65,047
	
	69,795

	Unique Built Co., Ltd.
	80,832
	
	351,373
	
	136,408
	
	295,797

	Unique System Co., Ltd.
	19,313
	
	88,694
	
	15,429
	
	92,578

	Unique Metal Company Limited
	233,139
	
	434,366
	
	288,351
	
	379,154

	Unique Exploration Company Limited
	32,872
	
	49,952
	
	31,924
	
	50,900

	Unique Practiga Company Limited
	140,017
	
	458,792
	
	324,026
	
	274,783

	Unique Prudence Company Limited
	14,786
	
	11,994
	
	8,654
	
	18,126

	Unique Equipment Service Company Limited
	25,545
	
	49,943
	
	45,204
	
	30,284

	Work Team Management Co., Ltd.
	66,020
	
	-
	
	30,497
	
	35,523

	Total trade account payables
	1,479,601
	
	3,348,122
	
	2,085,668
	
	2,742,055

	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	Other payables
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	Unique Real Estate and Development Co., Ltd.
	3,487
	
	16,351
	
	13,392
	
	6,446

	Unique Machinery Company Limited
	8
	
	-
	
	-
	
	8

	Unique Innovation Co., Ltd.
	· 
	
	21
	
	-
	
	21

	Total other payables
	3,495
	
	16,372
	
	13,392
	
	6,475

	Total
	1,483,096
	
	3,364,494
	
	2,099,060
	
	2,748,530


	
	Separate Financial Statements (In Thousand Baht)

	
	Balance as at
	
	
	
	
	
	

	
	December 31,
	
	
	
	
	
	Balance as at

	
	2014
	
	
	
	
	
	December 31,

	
	(Restated)
	
	Increase
	
	Decrease
	
	2015

	Advances received from
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	Sun Technology and Construction Co., Ltd.
	-
	
	25,000
	
	349
	
	24,651

	Unique Real Estate and Development Co., Ltd.
	295
	
	9,000
	
	4,000
	
	5,295

	Unique Plus Technology Co., Ltd.
	-
	
	6,000
	
	1,512
	
	4,488

	Unique Foundation Company Limited
	-
	
	49
	
	-
	
	49

	Unique Innovation Co., Ltd.
	-
	
	23
	
	-
	
	23

	Unique Built Co., Ltd.
	-
	
	13
	
	-
	
	13

	Golden Estate Plus Co., Ltd.
	-
	
	6
	
	-
	
	6

	Unique Metal Company Limited
	-
	
	3
	
	-
	
	3

	Total
	295
	
	40,094
	
	5,861
	
	34,528


The Company has a rental agreement covering a subsidiary company’s real estate project and a warehouse for keeping the Unique Group’s construction parts and materials for the construction projects of the Unique Group for a period of 3 years expiring on December 31, 2016, whereby, the Company has an option to renew the rental agreement upon the expiry date. Total rental charges under this agreement amounted to Baht 10.7 million per year. 

5.
SHORT-TERM INVESTMENTS

	
	In Thousand Baht

	
	Interest Rates (% p.a.)
	
	Consolidated Financial Statements
	
	Separate Financial Statements

	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	2014

	
	2015
	
	2014
	
	2015
	
	2014
	
	2015
	
	(Restated)

	Investments in 
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	fixed deposits
	0.85 – 1.25
	
	1.10 - 1.13
	
	4,302
	
	304,259
	
	4,301
	
	304,259

	Mutual fund
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	- Cost value
	
	
	
	
	-
	
	28,417
	
	-
	
	28,417

	- Unrealized gain on
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	
change in valuation
	
	
	
	
	-
	
	679
	
	-
	
	679

	- Fair value
	-
	
	-
	
	-
	
	29,096
	
	-
	
	29,096

	Total
	
	
	
	
	4,302
	
	333,355
	
	4,301
	
	333,355


6.
TRADE AND OTHER ACCOUNT RECEIVABLES, TRADE AND OTHER ACCOUNT AND NOTE PAYABLES - Net
As at December 31, 2015 and 2014, the trade and other account receivables were detailed as follows:

	
	
	In Thousand Baht

	
	
	Consolidated Financial Statements
	
	Separate Financial Statements

	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	2014

	
	
	2015
	
	2014
	
	2015
	
	(Restated)

	Trade account receivables
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	-  Related parties
	          -

	
	          -

	
	884,106
	
	895,137

	-  Other companies
	1,769,415
	
	286,840
	
	1,769,415
	
	286,840

	Total trade account receivables
	1,769,415
	
	286,840
	
	2,653,521
	
	1,181,977

	Less: Advances received from customers
	(215,329)
	
	(53,621)
	
	(215,329)
	
	(53,621)

	Trade account receivables - net
	1,554,086
	
	233,219
	
	2,438,192
	
	1,128,356

	Other account receivables
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	-  Related parties
	          -

	
	          -

	
	59,719
	
	39,633

	-  Other companies
	42,658
	
	38,184
	
	29,677
	
	27,346

	Total other account receivables
	42,658
	
	38,184
	
	89,396
	
	66,979

	Less: Allowance for doubtful accounts
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	
on other receivable
	(8,000)
	
	          -

	
	(8,000)
	
	          -


	Other account receivables - net
	34,658
	
	38,184
	
	81,396
	
	66,979

	Trade and other account receivables - net
	1,588,744
	
	271,403
	
	2,519,588
	
	1,195,335

	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	Doubtful debts expenses during the year
	8,000
	
	          -

	
	8,000
	
	          -



As at December 31, 2015 and 2014, the aging analysis of trade and other account receivables were detailed as follows:

	
	
	In Thousand Baht

	
	
	Consolidated Financial Statements
	
	Separate Financial Statements

	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	2014

	
	
	2015
	
	2014
	
	2015
	
	(Restated)

	(
Within credit-term
	
	816,512
	
	173,165
	
	833,275
	
	336,148

	(
Periods over credit-term
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	      -
 Not over 6 months
	
	973,599
	
	127,819
	
	1,082,216
	
	380,787

	      -
 Over 6 months to 12 months
	
	644
	
	6,410
	
	78,976
	
	511,228

	      -
 Over 12 months 
	
	21,318
	
	17,630
	
	748,450
	
	20,793

	Total
	
	1,812,073
	
	325,024
	
	2,742,917
	
	1,248,956

	Less: Advances received from customers
	
	(215,329)
	
	(53,621)
	
	(215,329)
	
	(53,621)

	Less: Allowance for doubtful accounts
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	
on other receivable
	
	(8,000)
	
	          -

	
	(8,000)
	
	          -


	Net
	
	1,588,744
	
	271,403
	
	2,519,588
	
	1,195,335


The management believes that these receivables will be collectible in full since most receivables are government agencies which are virtually certain that they are collectible without significant loss. 

The Unique Group presented trade account receivables net of advances received from customers according to the condition of cash receipt from construction specified in the agreements as discussed in Note 17.
The Company and the Unique Group transferred the right on cash collection from the installment payments of the construction projects of the Company and the Unique Group for guarantee credit facilities from various local banks as discussed in Note 13.
As at December 31, 2015 and 2014, the trade and other account and note payables were detailed as follows:

	
	
	In Thousand Baht

	
	
	Consolidated Financial Statements
	
	Separate Financial Statements

	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	2014

	
	
	2015
	
	2014
	
	2015
	
	(Restated)

	Trade account payables
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	· Subsidiaries and related companies
	
	35,523
	
	66,020
	
	2,742,055
	
	1,479,601

	· Other companies
	
	1,936,197
	
	1,155,430
	
	1,213,674
	
	890,915

	Other payables
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	· Subsidiary companies
	
	          -

	
	          -

	
	6,475
	
	3,495

	Note payables
	
	2,333,917
	
	1,189,370
	
	2,260,663
	
	1,101,301

	Total
	
	4,305,637
	
	2,410,820
	
	6,222,867
	
	3,475,312

	Less: Advances payment to contractors
	
	(47,623)
	
	(70,441)
	
	(47,623)
	
	(70,441)

	Net
	
	4,258,014
	
	2,340,379
	
	6,175,244
	
	3,404,871


The Unique Group presented trade and other account and note payables net of advances payment to contractors according to the condition of cash payment for construction specified in the agreements. According to the term of the above agreements, the Unique Group withholds retention deposits from the contractors for their compliance with the conditions in the agreements at the certain percentages of the each invoice billed by the contractors. The Unique Group will release such retention deposits to the contractors when the construction projects complete and the contractors do not breach any conditions specified in the agreements.
7.
INVENTORIES
	
	
	In Thousand Baht

	
	
	Consolidated Financial Statements
	
	Separate Financial Statements

	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	2014

	
	
	2015
	
	2014
	
	2015
	
	(Restated)

	Construction-in-progress – real estate projects
	
	453,762
	
	453,762
	
	453,762
	
	453,762

	Construction-in-progress – construction projects
	
	47,239
	
	42,400
	
	48,650
	
	43,482

	Construction materials
	
	331,375
	
	556,530
	
	321,333
	
	431,505

	Total
	
	832,376
	
	1,052,692
	
	823,745
	
	928,749


As at December 31, 2015 and 2014, the construction-in-progress for real estate projects (included land) of the Company, which had carrying value in the consolidated financial statements and the separate financial statements totalling Baht 453.8 million are mortgaged as guarantee for short-term loans from financial institutions as discussed in Note 13.
As at December 31, 2015, cost of land in this real estate project of the Company is Baht 453.8 million as at December 31, 2015, whereby, the appraised value (fair market value) based on the report of an independent appraiser firm (Accurate Advisory Co., Ltd.) dated November 25, 2015 amounted to Baht 472.0 million.

8.
RECEIVABLE UNDER FINANCE LEASE AGREEMENT - Net
As at December 31, 2015, receivable under finance lease agreement has term 58 months and is receivable in equal installments payment. The balance of receivable under finance lease agreement is classified by due date per the contact, as follows:

	
	
	
	
	Consolidated Financial Statements (In Thousand Baht)

	For the year
	
	2015
	
	2014

	2016
	
	
	
	
	
	2,804
	
	-

	2017
	
	
	
	
	
	2,804
	
	-

	2018
	
	
	
	
	
	2,804
	
	-

	2019
	
	
	
	
	
	2,804
	
	-

	2020
	
	
	
	
	
	1,635
	
	-

	Total minimum lease payments receivable
	
	
	
	
	
	12,851
	
	-

	Less: Unearned finance income
	
	
	
	
	
	(1,653)
	
	-

	Present value of net minimum lease payments receivable
	11,198
	
	-

	Less: current portion due within one year - net of
	
	
	

	
unearned finance income
	(2,186)
	
	-

	Net
	
	
	
	
	
	9,012
	
	-


9.
INVESTMENTS IN RESTRICTED FIXED DEPOSITS
These represented investments in fixed deposits of the Company and the Unique Group with certain local banks, which bear interest at the rates of 0.375% per annum to 1.625% per annum as at December 31, 2015 and at the rates of 1.10% per annum to 2.50% per annum as at December 31, 2014.
As at December 31, 2015 and 2014, the Company’s fixed deposits amounting to approximately Baht 576.5 million and Baht 1,125.1 million, respectively, were pledged as collateral for credit facilities of various local banks as discussed in Note 13.  In addition, as at December 31, 2015 and 2014, the Company’s fixed deposit amounting to approximately Baht 1.6  million was pledged as collateral for the litigation case as discussed in Note 28.
As at December 31, 2015 and 2014, the subsidiary companies’ fixed deposits totalling approximately Baht 0.3 million and Baht 3.2 million, respectively, were pledged as collateral for credit facilities of a local bank as discussed in Note 13.

10.
INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARY COMPANIES 
As at December 31, 2015 and 2014, the investments in subsidiary companies were as follows: 

	
	
	
	
	          In Thousand Baht 


	
	 Paid-up Share Capital
	Percentage of
	Cost Value

	
	(    In Million Baht
)
	         Ownership
  
	(Separate Financial Statements) 

	
	    2015

	    2014

	    2015

	    2014

	      2015

	      2014


	· Unique Real Estate and  Development Co., Ltd.
	500
	500
	99.99
	99.99
	288,000
	288,000

	· Unique Foundation Company Limited
	20
	20
	99.99
	99.99
	20,000
	20,000

	· Unique Tunnelling Company Limited
	20
	20
	99.99
	99.99
	20,000
	20,000

	· Unique Machinery Company Limited
	5
	5
	99.99
	99.99
	5,000
	5,000

	· Unique Plus Technology Co., Ltd.
	5
	5
	99.99
	99.99
	5,000
	5,000

	· UQ-SRC Joint Venture Co., Ltd.
	2
	2
	    89.99
	    89.99
	1,799
	1,799

	· Golden Estate Plus Co., Ltd.
	200
	200
	99.99
	99.99
	200,000
	200,000

	· Unique System Co., Ltd.
	5
	5
	99.99
	99.99
	5,000
	5,000

	· Unique Built Co., Ltd.
	5
	5
	99.99
	99.99
	5,000
	5,000

	· Unique Innovation Co., Ltd.
	400
	400
	99.99
	99.99
	400,000
	400,000

	· Unique Prudence Company Limited
	5
	5
	99.99
	99.99
	5,000
	5,000

	· Unique Metal Company Limited
	1
	1
	99.97
	99.97
	1,000
	1,000

	· Unique Practiga Company Limited
	1
	1
	99.97
	99.97
	1,000
	1,000

	· Unique Exploration Company Limited
	1
	1
	99.97
	99.97
	999
	999

	· Unique Masters Company Limited
	1
	1
	99.97
	99.97
	999
	999

	· Unique Equipment Service Company Limited
	1
	1
	99.97
	99.97
	999
	999

	· Sun Technology and Construction Co., Ltd.
	25
	25
	99.99
	99.99
	    24,999
	    24,999

	Total
	
	
	
	
	  984,795
	  984,795


The Company is a guarantor for long-term loans from a local bank of two subsidiary companies as discussed in Note 15.

A subsidiary company is a guarantor for long-term loans from a local bank of the Company as discussed in Note 15.

11.
PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT – Net

	
	Consolidated Financial Statements (In Thousand Baht)

	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	Advance for
	
	

	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	Purchase
	
	

	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	Furniture,
	
	
	
	Fixed Assets
	
	

	
	
	
	
	
	Buildings,
	
	Machinery
	
	Fixtures
	
	
	
	and
	
	

	
	
	
	
	
	and
	
	and
	
	and Office
	
	
	
	Construction
	
	

	
	Land
	
	Sand Pits
	
	Improvements
	
	Equipment
	
	Equipment
	
	Vehicles
	
	in Progress
	
	Total

	Cost
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	As at January 1, 2014
	1,124,163
	
	54,427
	
	229,137
	
	2,833,457
	
	103,888
	
	267,494
	
	417,809
	
	5,030,375

	Additions
	12,341
	
	       -
	
	7,616
	
	1,057,827
	
	20,543
	
	28,321
	
	383,905
	
	1,510,553

	Disposals
	       -
	
	       -
	
	(5,502)
	
	(101,127)
	
	(41)
	
	(6,518)
	
	       -
	
	(113,188)

	Transfers in (out)
	4,275
	
	       -
	
	810
	
	305,095
	
	582
	
	687
	
	(328,833)
	
	(17,384)

	As at December 31, 2014
	1,140,779
	
	54,427
	
	232,061
	
	4,095,252
	
	124,972
	
	289,984
	
	472,881
	
	6,410,356

	Additions
	       -
	
	       -
	
	139,258
	
	253,831
	
	46,168
	
	65,006
	
	179,810
	
	684,073

	Disposals
	       -
	
	       -
	
	(665)
	
	(47,376)
	
	       -
	
	(968)
	
	       -
	
	(49,009)

	Write-off
	       -
	
	       -
	
	       -
	
	(32)
	
	(1,746)
	
	(21,830)
	
	(4)
	
	(23,612)

	Transfers in (out)
	(4,702)
	
	4,702
	
	399,425
	
	4,674
	
	64
	
	       -
	
	(404,163)
	
	       -

	As at December 31, 2015
	1,136,077
	
	59,129
	
	770,079
	
	4,306,349
	
	169,458
	
	332,192
	
	248,524
	
	7,021,808


	
	Consolidated Financial Statements (In Thousand Baht)

	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	Advance for
	
	

	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	Purchase
	
	

	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	Furniture,
	
	
	
	Fixed Assets
	
	

	
	
	
	
	
	Buildings,
	
	Machinery
	
	Fixtures
	
	
	
	and
	
	

	
	
	
	
	
	and
	
	and
	
	and Office
	
	
	
	Construction
	
	

	
	Land
	
	Sand Pits
	
	Improvements
	
	Equipment
	
	Equipment
	
	Vehicles
	
	in Progress
	
	Total

	Accumulated
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	Depreciation and
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	Depletion
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	As at January 1, 2014
	       -
	
	6,219
	
	74,124
	
	1,005,701
	
	50,176
	
	127,095
	
	       -
	
	1,263,315

	Depreciation and
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	depletion charges
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	for the year
	       -
	
	7,915
	
	21,855
	
	643,051
	
	16,383
	
	40,113
	
	       -
	
	729,317

	Disposals
	       -
	
	       -
	
	(490)
	
	(5,001)
	
	(12)
	
	(6,518)
	
	       -
	
	(12,021)

	Transfers in (out)
	       -
	
	       -
	
	       -
	
	       -
	
	(4)
	
	       -
	
	       -
	
	(4)

	As at December 31, 2014
	       -
	
	14,134
	
	95,489
	
	1,643,751
	
	66,543
	
	160,690
	
	       -
	
	1,980,607

	Depreciation and
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	depletion charges
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	for the year
	       -
	
	14,127
	
	26,770
	
	682,790
	
	21,433
	
	45,793
	
	       -
	
	790,913

	Disposals
	       -
	
	       -
	
	(546)
	
	(41,431)
	
	       -
	
	(969)
	
	       -
	
	(42,946)

	Write-off
	       -
	
	       -
	
	       -
	
	(6)
	
	(1,674)
	
	(21,831)
	
	       -
	
	(23,511)

	As at December 31, 2015
	       -
	
	28,261
	
	121,713
	
	2,285,104
	
	86,302
	
	183,683
	
	       -
	
	2,705,063

	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	Allowance for 
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	Impairment Loss
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	As at January 1, 2014
	15,000
	
	       -
	
	       -
	
	       -
	
	       -
	
	       -
	
	       -
	
	15,000

	As at December 31, 2014
	15,000
	
	       -
	
	       -
	
	       -
	
	       -
	
	       -
	
	       -
	
	15,000

	As at December 31, 2015
	15,000
	
	       -
	
	       -
	
	       -
	
	       -
	
	       -
	
	       -
	
	15,000

	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	Net Book Value
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	Owned assets
	1,125,779
	
	40,293
	
	113,882
	
	379,299
	
	36,027
	
	7,345
	
	472,881
	
	2,175,506

	Assets under finance leases
	       -
	
	       -
	
	22,690
	
	2,072,202
	
	22,402
	
	121,949
	
	       -
	
	2,239,243

	As at December 31, 2014
	1,125,779
	
	40,293
	
	136,572
	
	2,451,501
	
	58,429
	
	129,294
	
	472,881
	
	4,414,749

	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	Owned assets
	1,121,077
	
	30,868
	
	631,777
	
	330,146
	
	83,156
	
	7,467
	
	248,524
	
	2,453,015

	Assets under finance leases
	       -
	
	       -
	
	16,589
	
	1,691,099
	
	       -
	
	141,042
	
	       -
	
	1,848,730

	As at December 31, 2015
	1,121,077
	
	30,868
	
	648,366
	
	2,021,245
	
	83,156
	
	148,509
	
	248,524
	
	4,301,745


	
	Separate Financial Statements (In Thousand Baht)

	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	Advance for
	
	

	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	Purchase
	
	

	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	Furniture,
	
	
	
	Fixed Assets
	
	

	
	
	
	Buildings,
	
	Machinery
	
	Fixtures
	
	
	
	and
	
	

	
	
	
	and
	
	and
	
	and Office
	
	
	
	Construction
	
	

	
	Land
	
	improvements
	
	Equipment
	
	Equipment
	
	Vehicles
	
	in Progress
	
	Total

	Cost
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	As at January 1, 2014

(Restated)
	55,898
	
	197,284
	
	1,408,167
	
	98,283
	
	241,902
	
	61,834
	
	2,063,368

	Additions
	-
	
	6,243
	
	126,823
	
	13,157
	
	28,224
	
	1,944
	
	176,391

	Disposals
	-
	
	(5,502)
	
	(96,204)
	
	(39)
	
	(6,518)
	
	-
	
	(108,263)

	Transfers in (out)
	-
	
	630
	
	42,621
	
	533
	
	687
	
	(59,816)
	
	(15,345)

	As at December 31, 2014

(Restated)
	55,898
	
	198,655
	
	1,481,407
	
	111,934
	
	264,295
	
	3,962
	
	2,116,151

	Additions
	-
	
	8,760
	
	23,898
	
	27,640
	
	64,526
	
	26,451
	
	151,275

	Disposals
	-
	
	(664)
	
	-
	
	-
	
	(969)
	
	-
	
	(1,633)

	Write-off
	-
	
	-
	
	(32)
	
	(1,694)
	
	(21,831)
	
	-
	
	(23,557)

	Transfers in (out)
	-
	
	-
	
	6
	
	-
	
	-
	
	(6)
	
	-

	As at December 31, 2015
	55,898
	
	206,751
	
	1,505,279
	
	137,880
	
	306,021
	
	30,407
	
	2,242,236

	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	Accumulated
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	Depreciation
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	As at January 1, 2014

(Restated)
	-
	
	48,578
	
	859,563
	
	49,320
	
	125,051
	
	-
	
	1,082,512

	Depreciation charge for
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	the year
	-
	
	20,252
	
	183,645
	
	14,570
	
	34,980
	
	-
	
	253,447

	Disposals
	-
	
	(489)
	
	(4,888)
	
	(11)
	
	(6,518)
	
	-
	
	(11,906)

	As at December 31, 2014

(Restated)
	-
	
	68,341
	
	1,038,320
	
	63,879
	
	153,513
	
	-
	
	1,324,053

	Depreciation charge for
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	the year
	-
	
	20,747
	
	148,484
	
	16,548
	
	40,606
	
	-
	
	226,385

	Disposals
	-
	
	(546)
	
	-
	
	-
	
	(969)
	
	-
	
	(1,515)

	Write-off
	-
	
	-
	
	(6)
	
	(1,674)
	
	(21,831)
	
	-
	
	(23,511)

	As at December 31, 2015
	-
	
	88,542
	
	1,186,798
	
	78,753
	
	171,319
	
	-
	
	1,525,412

	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	Allowance for 
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	impairment loss
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	


	As at January 1, 2014
	15,000
	
	-
	
	-
	
	-
	
	-
	
	-
	
	15,000

	As at December 31, 2014
	15,000
	
	-
	
	-
	
	-
	
	-
	
	-
	
	15,000

	As at December 31, 2015
	15,000
	
	-
	
	-
	
	-
	
	-
	
	-
	
	15,000

	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	Net Book Value
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	Owned assets
	40,898
	
	107,624
	
	259,918
	
	48,055
	
	1,843
	
	3,962
	
	462,300

	Assets under finance leases
	-
	
	22,690
	
	183,169
	
	-
	
	108,939
	
	-
	
	314,798

	As at December 31, 2014

(Restated)
	40,898
	
	130,314
	
	443,087
	
	48,055
	
	110,782
	
	3,962
	
	777,098

	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	Owned assets
	40,898
	
	101,619
	
	212,387
	
	59,127
	
	6,741
	
	30,407
	
	451,179

	Assets under finance leases
	-
	
	16,590
	
	106,094
	
	-
	
	127,961
	
	-
	
	250,645

	As at December 31, 2015
	40,898
	
	118,209
	
	318,481
	
	59,127
	
	134,702
	
	30,407
	
	701,824


The Group has various finance lease agreements with several leasing companies covering various machinery and vehicles as discussed in Note 16.

During the year ended December 31, 2015, a subsidiary company capitalized interest charge from loans as part of a such company’s yard project of Baht 0.6 million. (2014: Nil)
As at December 31, 2015 and 2014, land of a subsidiary company, which had carrying value in the consolidated financial statements of Baht 430.7 million was mortgaged as guarantee for long-term loan from a financial institution as discussed in Note 15.
In January and April 2014, the Company entered into various sale and purchase agreements with a local leasing company for selling its certain temporary buildings, tools and equipment totalling Baht 89.8 million, which equal their carrying values at the agreement date. At the same date, the Company entered into hire-purchase agreements with such leasing company to purchase back those temporary buildings, tools and equipment at the same selling prices plus interest at the specified rate by having down payments and monthly equal installment payments for a period of 36 months, 46 months and 48 months. The ownership of those temporary buildings, tools and equipment will automatically be transferred to the Company when the Company makes the last installment payments. 

Land, building and machinery of the Company with the net carrying value totalling Baht 213.5 million and Baht 241.1 million (and of the Unique Group with the net carrying value totalling Baht 1,165.8 million and Baht 1,310.2 million) as at December 31, 2015 and 2014, respectively, have been mortgaged/pledged as collateral for credit facilities obtained from various financial institutions as discussed in Notes 13 and 15.  In addition, the benefits of the insurance coverage for machinery and building have been assigned to the lenders.
The gross carrying amounts of the Company’s certain plant and equipment totalling approximately Baht 870.6 million and Baht 639.7 million (and of the Unique Group’s plant and equipment totalling approximately Baht 895.9 million and Baht 703.5 million) were fully depreciated as at December 31, 2015 and 2014, respectively, but these items are still in active use.

12.
INTANGIBLE ASSETS - Net 
	
	
	Consolidated 

Financial Statements

	
	
	(In Thousand Baht)

	Software Licenses
	
	

	Cost
	
	

	As at January 1, 2014
	
	10,177

	Additions
	
	1,358

	As at December 31, 2014
	
	11,535

	Additions
	
	3,902

	As at December 31, 2015
	
	15,437

	
	
	

	Accumulated Amortization
	
	

	As at January 1, 2014
	
	4,758

	Amortization charge for the year
	
	1,286

	As at December 31, 2014
	
	6,044

	Amortization charge for the year
	
	1,559

	As at December 31, 2015
	
	7,603

	
	
	

	Net Book Value
	
	

	As at December 31, 2014
	
	5,491

	As at December 31, 2015
	
	7,834


	
	
	Separate  

Financial Statements

	
	
	(In Thousand Baht)

	Software Licenses
	
	

	Cost
	
	

	As at January 1, 2014 (Restated)
	
	9,840

	Additions
	
	1,263

	As at December 31, 2014 (Restated)
	
	11,103

	Additions
	
	3,902

	As at December 31, 2015
	
	15,005

	
	
	

	Accumulated Amortization
	
	

	As at January 1, 2014 (Restated)
	
	4,757

	Amortization charge for the year
	
	1,272

	As at December 31, 2014 (Restated)
	
	6,029

	Amortization charge for the year
	
	1,473

	As at December 31, 2015
	
	7,502

	
	
	

	Net Book Value
	
	

	As at December 31, 2014 (Restated)
	
	5,074

	As at December 31, 2015
	
	7,503


The gross carrying amounts of the Company and of the Unique Group’s certain intangible assets totalling approximately Baht 3.4 million were fully amortized as at December 31, 2015 and 2014, but these items are still in active use.

13.
BANK OVERDRAFTS AND SHORT-TERM LOANS FROM FINANCIAL INSTITUTIONS

	
	In Thousand Baht

	
	
	
	Consolidated Financial Statements
	
	Separate Financial Statements

	
	Interest Rates (% p.a.)
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	2014

	
	2015
	
	2014
	
	2015
	
	2014
	
	2015
	
	(Restated)

	Bank overdrafts
	7.375
	
	7.375
	
	17,183
	
	35,246
	
	17,179
	
	35,239

	Liabilities under trust
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	receipts
	
	
	
	
	24,763
	
	4,134
	
	23,973
	
	4,134

	Notes payable to banks 
	4.000 - 7.375
	
	4.500 - 7.375
	
	3,057,323
	
	2,055,739
	
	3,057,323
	
	2,055,739

	Total
	
	
	
	
	3,099,269
	
	2,095,119
	
	3,098,475
	
	2,095,112


As at December 31, 2015, the Company and the Unique Group obtained overdraft credit lines from various local banks totalling Baht 45 million. The Company and the Unique Group obtained other credit facility lines from various local banks totalling Baht 55,217.6 million and Baht 60,367.0 million, respectively. These credit facilities are collateralized by fixed deposits of the Company and the Unique Group totalling Baht 576.5 million and Baht 576.8 million, respectively, as discussed in Note 9 and by transferring the right on cash collection from the installment payments of the construction projects of the Company and the Unique Group as discussed in Note 6, the Company’s construction in progress - real estate projects amounting to Baht 453.8 million as discussed in Note 7 and certain fixed assets of the Company and Unique Group as discussed in Note 11 including additional guarantee by a subsidiary company.

Under the terms of the trust receipt agreements, certain imported raw materials have been released to the Company in trust for the financial institution. The Company is accountable to the financial institution for the trusted raw materials or their sales proceeds.

14. 
PROVISIONS FOR EMPLOYEE BENEFITS
	
	
	In Thousand Baht

	
	
	Consolidated Financial Statements
	
	Separate Financial Statements

	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	2014

	
	
	2015
	
	2014
	
	2015
	
	(Restated)

	Provision for employee retirement benefit obligation
	
	45,774
	
	31,408
	
	26,627
	
	19,445

	Provision for other long-term employee benefit
	
	19,072
	
	9,716
	
	· 
	
	· 

	Total
	
	64,846
	
	41,124
	
	26,627
	
	19,445


Provision for employee retirement benefit as at December 31, 2015 and 2014 was as follows:

	
	In Thousand Baht

	
	Consolidated Financial Statements
	
	Separate Financial Statements

(Restated)

	

	
	
	

	Employee retirement benefit obligation as at January 1, 2014
	13,547
	
	13,547

	Current service cost
	8,067
	
	4,074

	Interest cost
	794
	
	527

	Actuarial losses
	9,000
	
	1,297

	Employee retirement benefit obligation as at December 31, 2014
	31,408
	
	19,445

	Current service cost
	13,490
	
	6,474

	Interest cost
	697
	
	436

	Actuarial losses
	179
	
	272

	Employee retirement benefit obligation as at December 31, 2015
	45,774
	
	26,627


Expenses recognized in the statements of comprehensive income for each of the years ended December 31, 2015 and 2014 were as follows:
	
	
	In Thousand Baht

	
	
	Consolidated Financial Statements
	
	Separate Financial Statements

	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	2014

	
	
	2015
	
	2014
	
	2015
	
	(Restated)

	In profit for the year :
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	Current service cost
	
	13,490
	
	8,067
	
	6,474
	
	4,074

	Interest cost
	
	697
	
	794
	
	436
	
	527

	In other comprehensive loss for the year :
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	Actuarial losses
	
	179
	
	9,000
	
	272
	
	1,297

	Total
	
	14,366
	
	17,861
	
	7,182
	
	5,898


Actuarial assumptions

	
	2015
	
	2014

	Discount rate
	2.21%
	
	3.5680%

	Future salary increase
	3.00%
	
	3.00%

	Mortality rate
	based on Thai Mortality Ordinary Tables of 2008 (TMO2008)
	
	based on Thai Mortality Ordinary Tables of 2008 (TMO2008)


Provision for other long-term employee benefit as at December 31, 2015 and 2014 was as follows:

	
	Consolidated Financial Statements

	
	(In Thousand Baht)

	
	

	Provision for other long-term employee benefit as at December 31, 2014
	9,716

	Employee benefit paid during the year
	(9)

	Recognized during the year 
	9,365

	Provision for other long-term employee benefit as at December 31, 2015
	19,072


15.
LONG-TERM LOANS FROM FINANCIAL INSTITUTION - Net 
	
	In Thousand Baht

	
	Interest Rates (% p.a.)
	
	Consolidated Financial Statements
	
	Separate Financial Statements

	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	2014

	
	2015
	
	2014
	
	2015
	
	2014
	
	2015
	
	(Restated)

	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	Loans from a local bank
	5.775-6.525
	
	6.000-6.750
	
	918,404
	
	604,404
	
	90,404
	
	158,204

	Less: current portion
	
	
	
	(408,000)
	
	(150,000)
	
	(67,800)
	
	(67,800)

	Net
	
	
	
	
	510,404
	
	454,404
	
	22,604
	
	90,404


The Company

On May 6, 2010, the Company obtained credit facilities from a local bank totalling Baht 575 million for the Company’s yard project, which consisted of:

	             Type of Credit Facilities

	Credit Line 
(Million Baht)
	             Interest Rate

	             Repayment Term


	a)
Term loan (for land)


(to drawdown not exceeding the amount to refinance with the subsidiary’s banker)


	209
	-
Minimum Loan Rate minus 0.75% per annum in the first year 
-
Minimum Loan Rate minus 0.50% per annum in the following years
	At 84 monthly installments not less than Baht 2.50 million per month

	
	
	
	

	b)
Term loan (for construction)

(to drawdown at 70% of the actual value incurred in each period based on report of an appraisal firm)
	76
	Minimum Loan Rate per annum
	At 84 monthly installments not less than Baht 0.91 million per month

	
	
	
	

	c)
Credit facility for purchases of machinery and equipment


(to drawdown at 70% of the actual value based on report of an appraisal firm)
	188
	Minimum Loan Rate per annum
	At 84 monthly installments not less than Baht 2.24 million per month

	
	
	
	

	d)
Letter of guarantee for electricity usage
	2
	1% per annum
	Review credit line every 12 months

	
	
	
	

	e)
Credit facility for forward contract
	100
	Determined by bank
	-

	Total
	575
	
	


This loan is secured by the mortgage of land of a subsidiary company and the Company’s land, building and machinery to be constructed thereon as discussed in Note 11 and additionally guaranteed by a subsidiary company as discussed in Note 10. In addition, the Company has to obtain the approval from such bank before distribution of dividends.

Subsidiaries

On January 28, 2014, a subsidiary company obtained credit facilities from a local bank totalling Baht 1,898 million for the subsidiary company’s operation to sell ready-mixed concrete and cast concrete. Subsequently on September 15, 2015, such subsidiary company entered into the amendment agreement with such bank. The credit facilities are as follows: 

	             Type of Credit Facilities

	Credit Line 
(Million Baht)
	             Interest Rate

	             Repayment Term


	a)
Term loan (for land)


(to drawdown at 75% of value based on sale and purchase land agreement not exceeding the amount of term loan)
	211
	Minimum Loan Rate minus 0.75% per annum


	At 96 monthly installments not less than Baht 2.25 million per month in periods 1 – 19 and not less than Baht 2.35 million in periods 20 – 96

	
	
	
	

	b)
Term loan (for land development and infrastructure)

(to drawdown at 60% of the actual value based on report of an outside appraisal firm registered with the bank not exceeding the amount of term loan)
	413
	Minimum Loan Rate minus 0.75% per annum 


	At 96 monthly installments not less than Baht 4.5 million per month in periods 1 – 19 and not less than Baht 5.4 million in periods 20 – 96

	
	
	
	

	c)
Term loan (for construct thereon and system)
(to drawdown at 75% of the actual value based on report of an outside appraisal firm registered with the bank not exceeding the amount of term loan)
	137
	Minimum Loan Rate minus 0.75% per annum 


	At 84 monthly installments not less than Baht 2.2 million per month

	
	
	
	

	d)
Term loan (for purchases of machinery/equipment/component)

(to drawdown at 75% of the actual value based on report of an outside appraisal firm registered with the bank)
	957
	Minimum Loan Rate minus 0.75% per annum 


	At 84 monthly installments not less than Baht 12.2 million per month in periods 1 – 19 and not than Baht 13.8 million in periods 20 – 84 

	
	
	
	

	e)
Overdraft
	30
	Minimum Overdraft Rate
	Review credit line every 12 months

	
	
	
	

	f)
Letter of guarantee
	100
	-
1% per annum for letter of guarantee

-
1.8% per annum for letter of credit

-
MOR for promissory note and trust receipt
	Review credit line every 12 months

	
	
	
	

	g)
Credit facility for forward contract
	50
	Determined by bank
	Review credit line every 12 months

	Total
	1,898
	
	


This loan is secured by the mortgage of land and construction thereon and machinery, and land and building of such subsidiary company to be constructed thereon as discussed in Note 11 and additionally guaranteed by the Company as discussed in Note 10. In addition, the subsidiary company has to maintain the condition in accordance with the loan agreement.

On January 29, 2014, another subsidiary company obtained credit facilities from a local bank totalling Baht 324.2 million for the subsidiary company’s operation dredge and sale sand, which consisted of:

	             Type of Credit Facilities

	Credit Line 
(Million Baht)
	             Interest Rate

	             Repayment Term


	a)
Term loan (for port)


(to drawdown at 75% of value based on sale and purchase land agreement as at transfer of ownership date)


	236.2
	-
Minimum Loan Rate minus 0.75% per annum in the first year 
-
Minimum Loan Rate minus 0.25% per annum in the following years
	At 72 monthly installments not less than Baht 3.45 million per month

	
	
	
	

	b)
Term loan (for sand pit’s land)

(to drawdown at 50% of value based on sale and purchase land agreement as at transfer of ownership date)
	50.0
	-
Minimum Loan Rate minus 0.75% per annum in the first year 
-
Minimum Loan Rate minus 0.25% per annum in the following years
	At 48 monthly installments not less than Baht 1.15 million per month

	
	
	
	

	c)
Credit facility for purchases of machinery and equipment

(to drawdown at 50% of the actual value of construction of bucket sand washing machine and/or  sand mining dredging boat completed 100% based on report of an outside appraisal firm registered with the bank)
	18.0
	-
Minimum Loan Rate minus 0.75% per annum in the first year 
-
Minimum Loan Rate minus 0.25% per annum in the following years
	At 36 monthly installments not less than Baht 0.58 million per month

	
	
	
	

	d)
Overdraft
	15.0
	MOR
	Review credit line every 12 months

	
	
	
	

	e)
Letter of guarantee
	5.0
	1% per annum
	Review credit line every 12 months

	Total
	324.2
	
	


This loan is secured by the mortgage of land and construction thereon and machinery, and land and building of such subsidiary company to be constructed thereon as discussed in Note 11 and additionally guaranteed by the Company as discussed in Note 10. In addition, the subsidiary company has to maintain the condition in accordance with the loan agreement.

16.
LIABILITIES UNDER FINANCE LEASE AGREEMENTS - Net
The Company and the Unique Group have various finance lease agreements with several leasing companies covering various fixed assets as discussed in Note 11.  The agreements have the term for certain periods expiring up to 2019. The ownerships of the assets under finance lease agreements will be transferred to the Company and the Unique Group when all payments are made to the leasing companies, which are summarized as follows:
	
	
	In Thousand Baht

	
	
	Consolidated Financial Statements
	
	Separate Financial Statements

	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	2014

	For the year
	
	2015
	
	2014
	
	2015
	
	(Restated)

	2015
	
	· 
	
	795,092
	
	· 
	
	106,936

	2016
	
	846,316
	
	770,141
	
	111,114
	
	90,976

	2017
	
	678,165
	
	610,227
	
	68,184
	
	49,151

	2018
	
	153,724
	
	87,779
	
	24,624
	
	7,238

	2019
	
	37,349
	
	· 
	
	9,476
	
	· 

	Total minimum lease payments
	
	1,715,554
	
	2,263,239
	
	213,398
	
	254,301

	Less: Deferred interest
	
	(97,241)
	
	(173,931)
	
	(11,183)
	
	(17,198)

	Present value of net minimum lease payments
	
	1,618,313
	
	2,089,308
	
	202,215
	
	237,103

	Less: current portion due within one year
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	
- net deferred interest
	
	(780,363)
	
	(700,146)
	
	(103,737)
	
	(96,567)

	Net
	
	837,950
	
	1,389,162
	
	98,478
	
	140,536


17.
ADVANCE PAYMENTS TO CONTRACTORS AND ADVANCES RECEIVED FROM CUSTOMERS

Advance payments to contractors represent cash payments to contractors at various percentages of total construction prices. These advance payments to contractors will be deducted at the agreed percentages from the progress billings from the contractors.

Advances received from customers represent cash advances from customers, who are government agencies, at various percentages of total construction contract prices. These advances received from customers will be deducted at the agreed percentages from the progress billings to the customers.
18.
SHARE CAPITAL

At the extraordinary shareholders’ meeting held on October 7, 2013, the shareholders passed the resolution for allotment of newly issued shares are as follows:
· 52 million shares will be for right offering to the existing shareholders at the ratio of 15 existing shares for 1 newly issued share.

· 250 million shares will be offered under private placement. 

In the event that there are remaining shares under this private placement, the Company shall be authorized to allot the remaining shares to existing shareholders in proportion to their shareholdings according to the list of shareholders entitled to subscribe to the new ordinary shares as appeared on the share register book on the specified date. During the offering period for the new ordinary shares, the existing shareholders may put forward an offer to subscribe for any excess rights exceeding their allocated proportion. The Company shall fix the allocation ratio for the allotment of new ordinary shares to existing shareholders in proportion to their shareholdings after the Company is informed of the number of shares remaining after allotment under private placement.

At the Board of Directors’ meeting held on September 11, 2014, the Board had the resolution to allot new ordinary shares to specific persons (Private Placement) as follows:
· Tranche I: Allotment to 22 institutional and individual investors, totalling 182.3 million shares at Baht 9.00 per share.

· Tranche II: Allotment to 5 institutional and individual investors, totalling 67.7 million shares at Baht 9.03 per share.

On September 22, 2014, the Company completely received the proceeds from the share subscriptions of Tranche I, with the share premium of Baht 1,426.8 million (net of the expenses incurred from the offering of Baht 31.4 million). The Company filed such increase in share capital to the Stock Exchange of Thailand on September 24, 2014, which was approved to be a listed security in the Stock Exchange of Thailand on September 26, 2014.

On October 1, 2014, the Company completely received the proceeds from the share subscriptions of Tranche II, with the share premium of Baht 532.2 million (net of the expenses incurred from the offering of Baht 11.6 million). The Company filed such increase in share capital to the Stock Exchange of Thailand on October 2, 2014, which was approved to be a listed security in the Stock Exchange of Thailand on October 6, 2014.

At the Board of Directors’ meeting held on October 7, 2014, the Board had the resolution to allot new ordinary shares to existing shareholders in proportion to their shareholdings. The Company has determined to change the allotment ratio from the ratio of 15 existing shares to 1 new share to the ratio of 20 existing shares to 1 new share with the offering price of Baht 9.00 per share.

On November 24, 2014, the Company completely received the proceeds from the share subscriptions from existing shareholders in proportion to their shareholdings, with the share premium of Baht 409.9 million (net of the expenses incurred from the offering of Baht 1.95 million). The Company filed such increase in share capital to the Stock Exchange of Thailand on November 25, 2014, which was approved to be a listed security in the Stock Exchange of Thailand on November 28, 2014.

At the Annual General Shareholders’ meeting held on April 2, 2015, the shareholders unanimously passed the resolutions to reduce the Company’s authorized share capital from Baht 1,081,508,574 (divided into 1,081,508,574 common shares at Baht 1 par value) to Baht 1,081,016,253 (divided into 1,081,016,253 common shares at Baht 1 par value). The Company registered the reduction of authorized share capital with the Ministry of Commerce on April 10, 2015.

19.
DIVIDEND PAYMENTS
Payments of dividends during the years ended December 31, 2015 and 2014 are as follows:

	
	
	
	Number of 
	
	

	
	
	Dividend per
	Common Shares
	Total Dividends
	

	
	              Approved by

	 Share (In Baht)

	   (In Shares)

	(In Thousand Baht)

	  Payment Date


	2015
	
	
	
	
	

	Dividends on  2014
	2015 Annual General
	
	
	
	

	earnings
	Shareholders’ Meeting
	
	
	
	

	
	held on April 2, 2015
	0.19
	1,080,974,753
	205,385
	April 30, 2015

	
	
	
	
	
	

	2014
	
	
	
	
	

	Dividends on  2013
	2014 Annual General
	
	
	
	

	earnings
	Shareholders’ Meeting
	
	
	
	

	
	held on March 31, 2014
	0.16
	779,539,289
	124,726
	April 29, 2014


20.
REGISTERED PROVIDENT FUND

The Company and its subsidiary companies have contributory provident funds for their employees in accordance with the terms and conditions prescribed in the Provident Fund Act B.E. 2530.  Membership to the funds is voluntarily.  Contributions are made monthly by the employees and by the Company and its subsidiary companies at 2% of the employees’ basic salaries. The provident funds are managed by a Fund Manager in accordance with the terms and conditions prescribed in the Ministerial Regulation No. 2 (B.E. 2532) issued under the Provident Fund Act B.E. 2530.

The Company and its subsidiary companies contributed to the fund totalling approximately Baht 6.1 million and Baht 4.4 million for each of the years ended December 31, 2015 and 2014, respectively (of the Company amounting to approximately Baht 3.2 million and Baht 2.5 million, respectively).
21.
LEGAL RESERVE 

Under the provision of the Public Company Limited Act B.E. 2535, the Company is required to set aside as reserve fund at least 5% of its annual net profit after deduction of the deficit brought forward (if any) until the reserve reaches 10% of authorized share capital. The reserve is not available for dividend distribution.
22.
AGREEMENTS
The Company and joint ventures entered into significant construction agreements with government agencies as follows:

· The Company

	  Agreement No.  
	     Date

	                      Description

	      Parties to the Contract

	     Period (Date of ) Completion

	      Retention

	         Performance Security


	Sor.Nor.Yor. 61/2554


	September 30, 2011   


	The project construction of Pattanakarn – Onnuch Interchange


	Bangkok Metropolitan Administration 


	Completion within 810 days Commencing from the letter of notice to proceed


	-
	Bank guarantee No. Kor.00019/108066/0275/54

Amounting to Baht 44.39 million



	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	PITB-745(R2)


	November 21, 2011


	The project construction of Pattanakarn – Onnuch Interchange and Supply and Installation of Water Pipe Line and Related Works


	The Metropolitan Waterworks Authority


	Completion within 30 days before the end of the project agreement


	-
	Bank guarantee No. Kor.00019/108066/0316/54

amounting to Baht 2.13 million



	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	For Aor Bor.Kor.10/ 2552


	November 21, 2011


	The project construction of Pattanakarn – Onnuch Interchange and Installation of Duct Bank and Man Hole


	The Metropolitan Electricity

Authority 


	Completion within 733 days commencing from the letter of notice to proceed


	-
	Bank guarantee No. Kor.00019/108066/0316/54

amounting to Baht 2.13 million



	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	Yor Tor. 02330/6/ Kor Tor.08
	August 29, 2012
	Manufacture or procurement of steel bridges including foundation, removal and installing of steel bridge at KM 2+609,KM 15+922, KM 16+444, KM 17+745, KM 18+102, KM 18+583, KM 20+821 and KM 23+229. Total 8 locations in the south line (out bound). Inspector of Thonburi route, inspector of Salaya route in the maintenance Zone of Bangsue, maintenance Division, Bangkok route. Central Maintenance Zone, Civil Works Division.
	The State Railway of Thailand
	Completion within 270 days commencing from the letter of notice to proceed


	-
	Bank guarantee No. Kor.00019/108066/0203/55 amounting to Baht 1.3 million



	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	Kor Sor.23/Ror For For/2555
	November 19, 2012
	Contraction for construction more platform for passenger in the commuter train project railway (red line) Bang Sue – Taling Chan section project
	The State Railway of Thailand
	Completion within 270 days commencing from the letter of notice to proceed


	-
	Bank guarantee No. Kor.00019/108066/0287/55 amounting to Baht 1.18 million

	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	4CI4-560005
	September 6, 2013
	Contraction for construction Off-Terminal Check-in in Phuket International Airport
	Airports of Thailand Public Company Limited
	Completion within 120 days commencing from the letter of notice to proceed


	-
	Bank guarantee No. Kor.00019/108066/0267/56  amounting to Baht 7.75 million


	  Agreement No.  
	     Date

	                      Description

	      Parties to the Contract

	     Period (Date of ) Completion

	      Retention

	         Performance Security


	HNP_P2-02/2014
	April 1, 2014
	Suvarnabhumi Airport, Hydrant Network Project - Phase 2 Contract for supplementary engineering design, supply, construction, commissioning and start-up of Aviation Fuel Hydrant Network
	Thai Aviation Refuelling Co., Ltd.
	Commencing  within 1,090 days after signing the contract within February 28, 2017
	-
	Bank guarantee amounting to Baht 40.9 million

	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	Kor Jor. 29/2558 (Kor Sor Por.)
	April 10, 2015
	Construction for water tunnel and building with components Mae Ngad – Mae Kuang Section Contract 2: Increasing water volume in Mae Kuang Udom Tara Project, Chiangmai Province
	Royal Irrigation Department, Ministry of Agriculture and Cooperative
	Commencing within 1,440 days after signing the contract
	-
	Bank guarantee No. 00019/108342/0097/58 amounting to Baht 94.04 million

	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	Por Tor Thor. Thor Kor Kor/2/238/58
	November 27, 2015
	Contraction for Relocation Natural Gas Transmission System Pathumthani – Phayathai Section between SP-49 to SP-51
	PTT Public Company Limited
	Commencing within 90 days after the letter of Notice to proceed
	-
	Bank guarantee No. 00019/108342/0433/58 amounting to Baht 2.25 million


· Unique-Chun Wo Joint Venture

	         Date

	                                 Description

	      Parties to the Contract

	     Period (Date of ) Completion

	      Retention

	         Performance Security


	December 12, 2008
	Construction of the state railway of Thailand known as the commuter train project (red line) Bang Sue-Taling Chan section project
	The State Railway of Thailand
	Completion within 1,100 days commencing from the letter of notice to proceed
	10%
	Bank guarantee 10% of value of work


· UN - SG Joint Venture 
	         Date

	                                 Description

	      Parties to the Contract

	     Period (Date of ) Completion

	      Retention

	         Performance Security


	October 14, 2010
	The project construction of Water Pipeline for Klong Pra-ong Chaiyanuchit- Bangpra reservior and building Agreement 2 : The project of veer water from the east Chaopraya-Bangpra reservoir Chonburi province
	Royal Irrigation Department
	Completion within 720 days commencing from the letter of notice to proceed
	10%
	Bank guarantee No. 
Kor 00019/108066/0207/53 and C05139/21010013251 amounting to Baht 52.9 million 


· SH – UN Joint Venture 

	         Date

	                                 Description

	      Parties to the Contract

	     Period (Date of ) Completion

	      Retention

	         Performance Security


	February 17, 2011
	Construction of the state railway of Thailand known as the MRT (blue line) Hua Lamphong-Bang Kae and Bang Sue-Thapra (contract 3) section project
	Mass Rapid Transit Authority of Thailand
	Completion within 1,640 days commencing from the letter of notice to proceed
	10%
	Bank guarantee No. Kor.00019/108066/0057/54 amounting to Baht 1,128 million 


· ITD – UNIQUE Joint Venture 
	         Date

	                                 Description

	      Parties to the Contract

	     Period (Date of ) Completion

	      Retention

	         Performance Security


	May 3, 2011
	Construction of the Klong Yai Multi-purpose Harbour Trad Province               
	Marine Department
	Commencing  within 990 days after sign the contract within January 17, 2014
	5%
	Bank Guarantee no. Kor.00019/108612/0013/54 amounting to Baht 25.9 million


· S U Joint Venture 

	         Date

	                                 Description

	      Parties to the Contract

	     Period (Date of ) Completion

	      Retention

	         Performance Security


	January 18, 2013
	Construction of the State Railway of Thailand Commuter Train Project (Red Line) Contract 1: Civil Works for Bang Sue Grand Station and Depots
	The State Railway of Thailand
	Commencing  within 1,440 days after sign the contract 
	10%
	Bank Guarantee no. Kor. 00019/108066/0013/56 amounting to Baht 2,982.7 million


	         Date

	                                 Description

	      Parties to the Contract

	     Period (Date of ) Completion

	      Retention

	         Performance Security


	April 9, 2015
	Civil Works For Bang Sue Grand Station and Depots (Red Line Contract 1)
	The State Railway of Thailand
	Commencing within 1,440 days after signing the contract Ref. Contract No. Kor Sor.01/2556 Dated January 18, 2013
	-
	Bank guarantee No. Kor. 00019/108342/0098/58 amounting to Baht 429.14 million


· UN-SH-CH Joint Venture 

	         Date

	                                 Description

	      Parties to the Contract

	     Period (Date of ) Completion

	      Retention

	         Performance Security


	April 3, 2015
	Civil Works Saphan Mai – Khu Khot Section The MRT Green Line (North) Project: Mo Chit – Saphan Mai – Khu Khot Section
	Mass Rapid Transit Authority of Thailand
	Commencing within 1,280 days since June 1, 2015 to December 2, 2018
	-
	- Bank guarantee No. 00019/108342/0084/58 amounting to Baht 332.50 million
- Bank guarantee No. 00019/108342/0085/58 amounting to Baht 199.71 million

- Bank guarantee No. 00019/108342/0086/58 amounting to Baht 133.14 million

	
	
	
	
	
	

	September 28, 2015
	Construction of Manholes and Election Conduits in Conjuction with Civil Works Saphan Mai – Khu Khot Section The MRT Green Line (North) Project: Saphan Mai – Khu Khot Section
	Metropolitan Electricity Authority
	Commencing within 1,198 days since October 1, 2015 to January 10, 2019 
	-
	Bank guarantee No. 00019/108342/0332/58 amounting to Baht 16.35 million


According to condition of the above agreements, the Unique Group is responsible for the deficiency of the construction projects for one or two years after the completion dates. Based on the management’s experience, however, the loss for possible deficiency is minimal.
According to the term of the above agreements, the Unique Group is withheld retention deposits by the customers for the compliance with the conditions in the agreements at the certain percentages of the each invoice billed by the Unique Group. The customers will release such retention deposits to the Unique Group when the construction projects complete and the Unique Group does not breach any conditions specified in the agreements.

The significant information of the construction agreements, which are in progress as at December 31, 2015 and 2014, were as follows:

	
	
	In Thousand Baht

	
	
	Consolidated Financial Statements
	
	Separate Financial Statements

	
	
	2015
	
	2014
	
	2015
	
	2014

	Construction revenues recognized as revenue
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	up to December 31, 
	
	48,042,742
	
	32,631,804
	
	48,042,742
	
	32,631,804

	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	Construction costs recognized as cost
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	up to December 31,
	
	46,362,540
	
	29,157,029
	
	46,362,540
	
	29,157,029

	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	Gross amount due from customers for construction
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	works (unbilled receivables and construction in
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	progress - construction projects) 
	
	10,116,629
	
	6,425,249
	
	9,092,357
	
	5,663,703


23.
DISCLOSURE OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Financial assets and financial liabilities carried on the separate statements of financial position and consolidated statements of financial position include cash and cash equivalents, short-term investments, trade and others account receivables, retention receivables, investments in restricted fixed deposits, receivable under finance lease agreement, advance payments to contractors, investments in subsidiary companies, short-term and long-term loans from financial institutions, trade and others account and note payables, retention payables to contractors, liabilities under finance lease agreements and advance received from customers. The accounting policies on recognition and measurement of these items are disclosed in the respective accounting policies in Note 3.

Liquidity Risk

Liquidity risk arises from the problem in raising funds adequately and in time to meet commitments as indicated in the financial statements. Based on the assessment of the Unique Group’s current financial position and results of operations, the Unique Group does not face liquidity risk.

Foreign Currency Risk

The Unique Group has commercial transactions in foreign currency, giving rise to exposure risk from changes in foreign exchange rates.  Hence, the management considers using forward exchange contracts to mitigate this risk from time to time as appropriate. 
Credit Risk

Credit risk is the risk that a counterparty is unable or unwilling to meet a commitment that it entered into with the Unique Group.  The risk is controlled by the application of credit approvals and monitoring procedures.  

The carrying amount of accounts receivable recorded in the statements of financial position and consolidated statements of financial position net of allowance for doubtful accounts, if any, represents the maximum exposure to credit risk.

Interest Rate Risk

Interest rate risk arises from the fluctuation of market interest rates, which may have an impact to current and future operations of the Unique Group. The Unique Group’s exposure to interest rate risk relates primarily to its deposits at financial institutions and short-term and long-term loans from financial institutions and liabilities under finance lease contracts.

However, since most of the Unique Group’s financial assets and liabilities bear floating interest rates or fixed interest rates which are close to the market rate. The management considers that the interest rate risk is minimal, hence, the Unique Group has no hedging agreement to protect against such risk.

Significant financial assets and liabilities as at December 31, 2015 and 2014, classified by type of interest rates are summarised in the table below, with those financial assets that carry fixed interest rates further classified based on the maturity date, or the repricing date if this occurs before the maturity date.
	
	                                  Consolidated Financial Statements

	

	
	                                         2015 (In Thousand Baht)

	

	
	             Fixed interest rates

	
	
	
	

	
	Within

1 year  
	1- 5 years
	Over

5 years
	Floating

interest rate
	Non-interest

bearing
	Total
	Effective interest rate

(% p.a.)


	Financial assets
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	Cash and cash equivalents 
	    -

	    -

	    -

	319,017
	7,472
	326,489
	0.375–0.500

	Short-term investments
	4,302
	    -

	    -

	    -

	      -

	4,302
	0.85 – 1.25

	Trade and others account
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	   receivables - net
	    -

	    -

	    -

	    -

	1,588,744
	1,588,744
	    -


	Advance payments
	    -

	    -

	    -

	    -

	2,700
	2,700
	    -


	Advance payments to contractors - net
	    -

	    -

	    -

	    -

	203,560
	203,560
	    -


	Retention receivables
	    -

	    -

	    -

	    -

	196,657
	196,657
	    -


	Investments in restricted fixed deposits
	578,419
	    -

	    -

	    -

	      -

	578,419
	0.375 – 1.625

	Receivable under finance lease 
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	   agreement
	    2,186
	 9,012
	    -

	      -

	      -

	     11,198
	6.275

	Total
	584,907
	 9,012
	    -

	  319,017
	1,999,133
	2,912,069
	

	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	Financial liabilities
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	Bank overdrafts and short-term loans 
	
	
	
	
	
	

	   from financial institutions
	3,082,086
	    -

	    -

	17,183
	      -

	3,099,269
	4.000-7.375

	Trade and other account and
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	   note payables
	    -

	    -

	    -

	    -

	4,258,014
	4,258,014
	    -


	Advance received
	    -

	    -

	    -

	    -

	46,428
	46,428
	    -


	Advance received from customers - net
	    -

	    -

	    -

	    -

	2,312,862
	2,312,862
	    -


	Retention payables to contractors
	    -

	    -

	    -

	    -

	181,439
	181,439
	    -


	Long-term loans from
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	   financial institutions
	    -

	    -

	    -

	918,404
	      -

	918,404
	5.775 - 6.525

	Liabilities under finance lease
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	   agreements

	  780,363
	  837,950
	    -

	      -

	      -

	1,618,313
	4.15 - 5.10

	Total
	3,862,449
	  837,950
	    -

	  935,587
	6,798,743
	12,434,729
	


	
	                                  Consolidated Financial Statements

	

	
	                                         2014 (In Thousand Baht)

	

	
	             Fixed interest rates

	
	
	
	

	
	Within

1 year  
	1- 5 years
	Over

5 years
	Floating

interest rate
	Non-interest

bearing
	Total
	Effective interest rate

(% p.a.)


	Financial assets
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	Cash and cash equivalents 
	    -

	    -

	      -

	620,722
	6,746
	627,468
	0.375-1.90

	Short-term investments
	303,449
	    -

	      -

	      -

	29,906
	333,355
	1.10-1.13

	Trade and others account
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	   receivables - net
	    -

	    -

	      -

	      -

	271,403
	271,403
	-

	Advance payments to contractor - net
	    -

	    -

	      -

	      -

	210,229
	210,229
	-

	Retention receivables
	    -

	    -

	      -

	      -

	104,555
	104,555
	-

	Investments in restricted fixed deposits
	1,129,868
	    -

	      -

	      -

	      -

	1,129,868
	1.10-2.50

	Total
	1,433,317
	    -

	      -

	    620,722
	    622,839
	2,676,878
	

	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	


	
	                                  Consolidated Financial Statements

	

	
	                                         2014 (In Thousand Baht)

	

	
	             Fixed interest rates

	
	
	
	

	
	Within

1 year  
	1- 5 years
	Over

5 years
	Floating

interest rate
	Non-interest

bearing
	Total
	Effective interest rate

(% p.a.)

	Financial liabilities
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	Bank overdrafts and short-term loans 
	
	
	
	
	
	

	   from financial institutions
	2,059,873
	    -

	      -

	35,246
	      -

	2,095,119
	4.500-7.375

	Trade and other account and
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	   note payables
	    -

	    -

	      -

	      -

	2,340,379
	2,340,379
	-

	Advance received
	    -

	    -

	      -

	      -

	41,821
	41,821
	-

	Advance received from customers - net
	    -

	    -

	      -

	      -

	2,072,585
	2,072,585
	-

	Retention payables to contractors
	    -

	    -

	      -

	      -

	139,785
	139,785
	-

	Long-term loans from
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	   financial institutions
	    -

	    -

	      -

	604,404
	      -

	604,404
	6.000-6.750

	Liabilities under finance lease
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	   agreements

	  700,146
	1,389,162
	      -

	      -

	      -

	2,089,308
	4.50-6.90

	Total
	2,760,019
	1,389,162
	      -

	   639,650
	4,594,570
	9,383,401
	


	
	                                      Separate Financial Statements

	

	
	                                           2015 (In Thousand Baht)

	

	
	             Fixed interest rates

	
	
	
	

	
	Within

1 year  
	1- 5 years
	Over

5 years
	Floating

interest rate
	Non-interest

bearing
	Total
	Effective interest rate

(% p.a.)

	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	


	Financial assets
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	Cash and cash equivalents 
	    -

	    -

	    -

	228,390
	6,633
	235,023
	0.375

	Short-term investments
	4,301
	    -

	    -

	    -

	      -

	4,301
	0.85 – 0.90

	Trade and others account
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	receivables - net
	    -

	    -

	    -

	    -

	2,519,588
	2,519,588
	    -


	Advance payments
	    -

	    -

	    -

	    -

	2,029,789
	2,029,789
	    -


	Advance payments to contractors - net
	    -

	    -

	    -

	    -

	194,045
	194,045
	    -


	Retention receivables
	    -

	    -

	    -

	    -

	196,657
	196,657
	    -


	Investments in restricted fixed deposits
	578,073
	    -

	    -

	    -

	      -

	   578,073
	0.375 – 1.625

	Total
	582,374
	    -

	    -

	   228,390
	4,946,712
	5,757,476
	

	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	Financial liabilities
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	Bank overdrafts and short-term loans 
	
	
	
	
	
	

	   from financial institutions
	3,081,296
	    -

	    -

	17,179
	      -

	3,098,475
	4.000-7.375

	Trade and other account and
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	   note payables
	    -

	    -

	    -

	    -

	6,175,244
	6,175,244
	    -


	Advance received
	    -

	    -

	    -

	    -

	80,956
	80,956
	    -


	Advance received from customer - net
	    -

	    -

	    -

	    -

	2,312,862
	2,312,862
	    -


	Retention payables to contractors
	    -

	    -

	    -

	    -

	135,438
	135,438
	    -


	Long-term loans from
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	   financial institutions
	    -

	    -

	    -

	90,404
	      -

	90,404
	6.025-6.525

	Liabilities under finance lease
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	   agreements

	  103,737
	  98,478
	    -

	    -

	      -

	    202,215
	4.15-5.10

	Total
	3,185,033
	  98,478
	    -

	  107,583
	8,704,500
	12,095,594
	


	
	                                      Separate Financial Statements

	

	
	                                           2014 (Restated) (In Thousand Baht)

	

	
	             Fixed interest rates

	
	
	
	

	
	Within

1 year  
	1- 5 years
	Over

5 years
	Floating

interest rate
	Non-interest

bearing
	Total
	Effective interest rate

(% p.a.)


	Financial assets
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	Cash and cash equivalents 
	-
	-
	-
	461,233
	6,268
	467,501
	0.125-1.900

	Short-term investments
	304,259
	-
	-
	-
	29,096
	333,355
	1.10-1.13

	Trade and others account
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	   receivables - net
	-
	-
	-
	-
	1,195,335
	1,195,335
	-

	Advance payments
	-
	-
	-
	-
	1,311,875
	1,311,875
	-

	Advance payments to contractors - net
	-
	-
	-
	-
	194,842
	194,842
	-

	Retention receivables
	-
	-
	-
	-
	104,555
	104,555
	-

	Investments in restricted fixed deposits
	1,126,677
	    -

	       -

	       -

	      -

	1,126,677
	1.10-2.50

	Total
	1,430,936
	    -

	       -

	   461,233
	2,841,971
	4,734,140
	

	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	Financial liabilities
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	Bank overdrafts and short-term loans 
	
	
	
	
	
	

	   from financial institutions
	2,059,872
	-
	-
	35,240
	-
	2,095,112
	4.500-7.375

	Trade and other account and
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	   note payables
	
	
	
	
	3,404,871
	3,404,871
	-

	Advance received
	-
	-
	-
	-
	42,116
	42,116
	-

	Advance received from customers - net
	-
	-
	-
	-
	2,072,585
	2,072,585
	-

	Retention payables to contractors
	-
	-
	-
	-
	120,363
	120,363
	-

	Long-term loans from
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	   financial institutions
	-
	-
	-
	158,204
	-
	158,204
	6.25-6.75

	Liabilities under finance lease
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	   agreements

	     96,567
	   140,536
	       -

	       -

	      -

	   237,103
	4.50-6.90

	Total
	2,156,439
	   140,536
	       -

	  193,444
	5,639,935
	8,130,354
	


Fair Value of Financial Instruments

Fair value is defined as the amount at which the instrument could be exchanged in a current transaction between knowledgeable willing parties in an arm’s length transaction.  The following methods and assumptions are used to estimate the fair value of each class of financial instruments.

Cash and cash equivalents, short-term investments, trade and others account receivables and advance payments to contractors - the carrying values approximate their fair values due to the relatively short-term maturity of these financial instruments.

Investments in restricted fixed deposits carrying at market floating rate - the carrying values approximate their fair values.

Investments in subsidiary companies for which there are no quoted market prices - a reasonable estimate of fair value, which has been calculated, based on the underlying net asset base for such investments, approximate their values base on equity method.

Retention receivables and payables : fair value cannot be calculated since there is no appropriate interest rate to be determined.
Receivable under finance lease agreement, which bears interest at the fixed rate; - the aggregate carrying value is insignificantly different from it aggregate fair value because the fixed interest rate approximates market rate.

Short-term loans from financial institutions, trade and others account and note payables and advance received from customers - the carrying amounts of these financial liabilities approximate their fair values due to the relatively short-term maturity of these financial instruments.

Liabilities under finance lease contracts, which bear interest at the fixed rates; - the aggregate carrying values are insignificantly different from their aggregate fair value because the fixed interest rates approximate market rates.

Long-term loans from financial institutions carrying interest at floating rate, which are considered to be market rate - the carrying value approximates the fair value. 

24.
EXPENSES BY NATURE

Significant expenses by nature for each of the years ended December 31, 2015 and 2014 are as follows:

	
	
	In Thousand Baht

	
	
	Consolidated Financial Statements
	
	Separate Financial Statements

	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	2014

	
	
	2015
	
	2014
	
	2015
	
	(Restated)

	Changes in inventories 
	
	220,316
	
	(496,502)
	
	105,004
	
	(403,883)

	Purchase of construction materials
	
	1,909,848
	
	4,212,879
	
	3,584,800
	
	4,173,533

	Direct labor and subcontractor
	
	3,302,818
	
	448,585
	
	3,308,961
	
	1,641,567

	Other construction expenses
	
	1,740,112
	
	1,336,662
	
	723,090
	
	830,664

	Employee benefit expenses
	
	773,558
	
	781,429
	
	316,179
	
	284,937

	Management benefit expenses
	
	27,504
	
	29,566
	
	25,077
	
	26,356

	Depreciation, depletion and amortization
	
	792,472
	
	730,603
	
	227,858
	
	254,719

	Other expenses
	
	173,938
	
	209,009
	
	145,821
	
	170,244

	Total expenses
	
	8,940,566
	
	7,252,231
	
	8,436,790
	
	6,978,137


25.
DEFERRED INCOME TAX ASSETS - Net
Income tax expense for each of the years ended December 31, 2015 and 2014 consisted of:
	
	In Thousand Baht

	
	Consolidated Financial Statements
	
	Separate Financial Statements

	
	
	
	
	
	2014

	
	2015
	
	2014
	
	2015
	
	(Restated)

	Income tax expense - current tax
	194,097
	
	148,234
	
	120,623
	
	99,030

	Add (Less) : Tax effect from deferred income tax of temporary differences
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	· Tax benefit on loss carry-forwards
	3,153
	
	(5,058)
	
	(5)
	
	(13)

	-  Allowance for doubtful account
	(1,600)
	
	· 
	
	(1,600)
	
	· 

	-  Short-term investments
	(303)
	
	303
	
	(303)
	
	303

	-  Liabilities under finance lease agreements
	(6,461)
	
	(8,456)
	
	(401)
	
	(939)

	-  Provision for employee retirement benefit
	(2,837)
	
	(3,573)
	
	(1,382)
	
	(1,180)

	-  Provision for other long-term employee benefit
	(1,871)
	
	(1,723)
	
	· 
	
	· 

	Income tax expense
	184,178
	
	129,727
	
	116,932
	
	97,201


Reconciliations between income tax expense and accounting income multiplied by the applicable tax rate for each of the years ended December 31, 2015 and 2014 are as follows:

	
	In Thousand Baht

	
	Consolidated Financial Statements
	
	Separate Financial Statements

	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	2014

	
	2015
	
	2014
	
	2015
	
	(Restated)

	Accounting profit before tax
	896,965
	
	639,200
	
	564,342
	
	476,127

	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	Income tax rate at 20% 
	179,393
	
	127,840
	
	112,868
	
	95,225

	Add (Less): Tax effect on
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	· non-utilized tax benefit on 
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	loss carry-forwards
	(1,207)
	
	2,615
	
	(1,207)
	
	2,615

	· related expenses for allotment shares
	· 
	
	(8,999)
	
	· 
	
	(8,999)

	· Gain on sale investment
	(79)
	
	· 
	
	(79)
	
	· 

	· non-deductible expenses
	6,071
	
	8,271
	
	5,350
	
	8,360

	Income tax expense
	184,178
	
	129,727
	
	116,932
	
	97,201


The details of deferred income tax assets - net as at December 31, 2015 and 2014 are as follows:

	
	Consolidated Financial Statements (In Thousand Baht)

	
	
	(Charged) / Credited to
	

	
	December 31,
	
	Profit
	
	Other comprehensive
	
	December 31,

	
	2014
	
	for the year
	
	loss for the year
	
	2015

	Deferred income tax assets
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	Allowance for impairment of asset
	3,000
	
	· 
	
	· 
	
	3,000

	Allowance for doubtful account
	· 
	
	1,600
	
	· 
	
	1,600

	Tax benefit on loss carry-forwards
	5,092
	
	(3,153)
	
	· 
	
	1,939

	Liabilities under finance lease agreements
	11,951
	
	6,461
	
	· 
	
	18,412

	Provision for employee retirement benefit
	6,282
	
	2,837
	
	36
	
	9,155

	Provision for other long-term employee
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	benefit
	1,943
	
	1,871
	
	· 
	
	3,814

	Deferred income tax liability
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	Short-term investments
	(303)
	
	303
	
	· 
	
	· 

	Net
	27,965
	
	9,919
	
	36
	
	37,920


	
	Separate Financial Statements (In Thousand Baht)

	
	
	Charged to
	

	
	
	January 1,
	
	
	
	December 31,
	
	
	
	
	
	

	
	
	2014
	
	
	
	2014
	
	Profit
	
	Other comprehensive
	
	December 31,

	Deferred income tax assets
	
	(Restated)
	
	Adjustments
	
	(Restated)
	
	for the year
	
	loss for the year
	
	2015

	Allowance for impairment of asset
	
	3,000
	
	  -
	
	3,000
	
	  -
	
	  -
	
	3,000

	Allowance for doubtful account
	
	  -
	
	  -
	
	  -
	
	1,600
	
	  -
	
	1,600

	Tax benefit on loss carry-forwards
	
	  -
	
	13
	
	13
	
	5
	
	  -
	
	18

	Liabilities under finance lease agreements
	
	501
	
	939
	
	1,440
	
	401
	
	  -
	
	1,841

	Provision for employee retirement benefit
	
	2,709
	
	1,180
	
	3,889
	
	1,382
	
	54
	
	5,325

	Deferred income tax liability
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	Short-term investments
	
	  -
	
	(303)
	
	(303)
	
	303
	
	  -
	
	  -

	Net
	
	6,210
	
	1,829
	
	8,039
	
	3,691
	
	54
	
	11,784


Unrecognized Deferred Income Tax Asset

As at December 31, 2015 and 2014, the Unique Group did not recognize deferred income tax asset from loss carry forward of two joint operators of Baht 24.8 million and Baht 26.5 million, respectively, since it is not probable that future taxable profit will be available against which such joint operators can utilize the benefit therefore.
26.
EARNINGS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE TO OWNERS OF THE PARENT
Basic earnings per share attributable of the owner of the parent are determined by dividing the profit for each of the years by the weighted average number of shares outstanding during the years.
Weighted average number of shares (basic) for each of the years ended December 31, 2015 and 2014 are as follows:

	
	
	
	
	In Million Shares

	
	
	
	
	2015
	
	2014

	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	Number of shares outstanding as at January 1
	
	
	
	1,081.0
	
	779.5

	Effect of shares issued during the year
	
	
	
	           -
	
	72.9

	Weighted average number of shares (basic) 
	
	
	
	1,081.0
	
	852.4


27.
SEGMENT FINANCIAL INFORMATION

The operations of the Unique Group principally involve construction contracting and real estate development, and are mostly carried on in the single geographic area of Thailand. During the years ended December 31, 2015 and 2014, there were no significant activities pertaining to the real estate development segment. Hence, no operating segments have been presented in the financial statements for each of the years ended December 31, 2015 and 2014.

28.   
OTHERS
As at December 31, 2015 and 2014,

a)
the Company and the Unique Group had commitments under the agreement to purchase machinery and equipment and consultation under construction projects and service agreements and purchase orders of construction materials totalling Baht 6,616.5 million and Baht 7,338.6 million, respectively (2014 : Baht 4,547.9 million and Baht 6,893.7 million, respectively).
b)
the Company and the Unique Group were contingently liable for letters of guarantee and other credit facilities issued by certain local banks to various government agencies and local companies totalling Baht 16,799.0 million and Baht 16,817.2 million, respectively (2014 : Baht 15,930.9 million and Baht 15,934.1 million, respectively).
d)
the Company may be seized BID bond of Baht 61.3 million by Public Works Department, Bangkok Metropolitan Administration because the Company did not participate in the E-Auction project Hatairaj road (Suwintawong-Saimai) on February 26, 2008 according to the E-Auction’s regulation since the representative of the Company who was assigned to participate in this auction being injured in a car accident. The Company submitted a petition to the Administrative Court to withdraw the order of such seizing the bond on February 8, 2013. The ultimate outcome of this case cannot presently be determined.

e) 
the Company was sued for the damages from the breach of agreements of 2 litigation cases, which the ultimate outcome cannot presently be determined. The details are as follows:

	
	Amount 

(Million Baht)
	
	Status of the Cases
	
	Remark

	
	
	
	
	
	

	Case 1
	1.4
	
	The case is being determined by the Supreme Court. 
	
	The case is secured by a part of the Company’s investment in restricted fixed deposit of Baht 1.6 million as discussed in Note 9.  The Company has recorded a provision for loss on this litigation case in the account of Baht 2.1 million.

	
	
	
	
	
	

	Case 2
	0.7
	
	The case is being determined by the Supreme Court. 
	
	The Court of Appeals sentenced that the Company has to compensate 1/3 of claimed amount. The Company has recorded a provision for loss on this litigation case in the accounts of Baht 0.4 million.

	
	
	
	
	
	


f)
the Company has a dispute with a venturer and the Company filed a request for arbitration according to the condition in the joint venture agreement. As at December 31, 2015, such case is being determined by the arbitrator and the Southern Bangkok Civil Court. The ultimate outcome of this matter cannot presently be determined.

g) 
a subsidiary company was sued for the damages from the infringed upon a litigation case of Baht 0.2 million, which is being determined by the Court of First Instance. The ultimate outcome of this case cannot presently be determined.  Hence, such subsidiary company has not recorded a provision for loss for these case.

29.
CAPITAL MANAGEMENT

The primary objective of the Unique Group’s capital management is to ensure that they have sustained good cash flows management and preserves the ability to continue their businesses as a going concern. 

As at December 31, 2015 and 2014, debt-to-equity ratios were as follows:

	
	
	Consolidated Financial Statements
	
	Separate Financial Statements

	
	
	2015
	
	2014
	
	2015
	
	2014
(Restated)

	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	Debt-to-equity ratio
	
	3.6 : 1
	
	2.7 : 1
	
	3.5 : 1
	
	2.3 : 1


No changes were made in the Unique Group’s objectives, policies or processes during the years ended December 31, 2015 and 2014.

30.
EVENTS AFTER REPORTING PERIOD
a) At the Board of Directors’ meeting no. 1/2016 held on February 18, 2016, the Board unanimously passed resolutions to propose of cash dividend from the net profit of the Company for the year ended December 31, 2015 of Baht 291,874,388 (at Baht 0.27 per share of 1,081,016,253 shares). The Board has fixed the Record Date on which shareholders entitled to receive dividend on March 3, 2016 and gathered shareholders by closing the share registration book on March 4, 2016. This cash dividend was proposed to be paid on April 27, 2016.

b) On January 11, 2016, the Company registered UA Joint Venture in order to bid certain projects in the future. Up to the present, this joint venture has not yet started any commercial operations. 
31.
NEW/REVISED THAI FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS NOT YET ADOPTED

The Unique Group has not adopted new/revised Thai Financial Reporting Standards (TFRS) that have been issued but are not yet effective at the reporting date as follows:

	TFRS
	
	Topic
	
	Effective date

	TFRS 2 (revised 2015)
	
	Share-based Payment
	
	2016

	TFRS 3 (revised 2015)
	
	Business Combinations
	
	2016

	TFRS 4 (revised 2015)
	
	Insurance Contracts
	
	2016

	TFRS 5 (revised 2015)
	
	Non-current Assets held for Sale and Discontinued Operations
	
	2016

	TFRS 6 (revised 2015)
	
	Exploration for and Evaluation of Mineral Resources
	
	2016

	TFRS 8 (revised 2015)
	
	Operating Segments
	
	2016

	TFRS 10 (revised 2015)
	
	Consolidated Financial Statements
	
	2016

	TFRS 11 (revised 2015)
	
	Joint Arrangements
	
	2016

	TFRS 12 (revised 2015)
	
	Disclosure of Interests in Other Entities
	
	2016

	TFRS 13 (revised 2015)
	
	Fair Value Measurement
	
	2016

	TAS 1 (revised 2015)
	
	Presentation of financial statements
	
	2016

	TAS 2 (revised 2015)
	
	Inventories
	
	2016

	TAS 7 (revised 2015)
	
	Statement of Cash Flows
	
	2016

	TAS 8 (revised 2015)
	
	Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors
	
	2016

	TAS 10 (revised 2015)
	
	Events after the Reporting Period
	
	2016

	TAS 11 (revised 2015)
	
	Construction Contracts
	
	2016

	TAS 12 (revised 2015)
	
	Income Taxes
	
	2016

	TAS 16 (revised 2015)
	
	Property, Plant and Equipment
	
	2016

	TAS 17 (revised 2015)
	
	Leases
	
	2016

	TAS 18 (revised 2015)
	
	Revenue
	
	2016

	TAS 19 (revised 2015)
	
	Employee Benefits
	
	2016

	TAS 20 (revised 2015)
	
	Accounting for Government Grants and Disclosure of Government Assistance
	
	2016

	TAS 21 (revised 2015)
	
	The Effects of Changes in Foreign Exchange Rates
	
	2016

	TAS 23 (revised 2015)
	
	Borrowing Costs
	
	2016

	TAS 24 (revised 2015)
	
	Related Party Disclosures
	
	2016

	TAS 26 (revised 2015)
	
	Accounting and Reporting by Retirement Benefit Plans
	
	2016

	TAS 27 (revised 2015)
	
	Separate Financial Statements
	
	2016

	TAS 28 (revised 2015)
	
	Investments in Associates and Joint Ventures
	
	2016

	TAS 29 (revised 2015)
	
	Financial Reporting in Hyperinflationary Economies
	
	2016

	TAS 33 (revised 2015)
	
	Earnings per Share
	
	2016

	TAS 34 (revised 2015)
	
	Interim Financial Reports
	
	2016

	TAS 36 (revised 2015)
	
	Impairment of Assets
	
	2016

	TAS 37 (revised 2015)
	
	Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets
	
	2016

	TAS 38 (revised 2015)
	
	Intangible Assets
	
	2016

	TAS 40 (revised 2015)
	
	Investment Property
	
	2016

	TAS 41
	
	Agriculture
	
	2016

	TFRIC 1 (revised 2015)
	
	Changes in Existing Decommissioning, Restoration and Similar Liabilities
	
	2016

	TFRIC 4 (revised 2015)
	
	Determining whether an Arrangement contains a Lease
	
	2016

	TFRIC 5 (revised 2015)
	
	Rights to Interests arising from Decommissioning, Restoration and Environmental Rehabilitation Funds
	
	2016

	TFRIC 7 (revised 2015)
	
	Applying the Restatement Approach under TAS 29 (revised 2015) Financial Reporting in Hyperinflationary Economies
	
	2016

	TFRIC 10 (revised 2015)
	
	Interim Financial Reporting and Impairment
	
	2016

	TFRIC 12 (revised 2015)
	
	Service Concession Arrangements
	
	2016

	TFRIC 13 (revised 2015)
	
	Customer Loyalty Programmes
	
	2016

	TFRIC 14 (revised 2015)
	
	TAS 19-The Limit on a Defined Benefit Asset, Minimum Funding Requirements and their Interaction
	
	2016

	TFRIC 15 (revised 2015)
	
	Agreements for the Construction of Real Estate
	
	2016

	TFRIC 17 (revised 2015)
	
	Distributions of Non-cash Assets to Owners
	
	2016


	TFRS
	
	Topic
	
	Effective date

	TFRIC 18 (revised 2015)
	
	Transfers of Assets from Customers
	
	2016

	TFRIC 20 (revised 2015)
	
	Stripping Costs in the Production Phase of a Surface Mine
	
	2016

	TFRIC 21
	
	Levies
	
	2016

	TSIC 10 (revised 2015)
	
	Government Assistance-No Specific Relation to Operating Activities
	
	2016

	TSIC 15 (revised 2015)
	
	Operating Leases-Incentives
	
	2016

	TSIC 25 (revised 2015)
	
	Income Taxes-Changes in the Tax Status of an Entity or its Shareholders
	
	2016

	TSIC 27 (revised 2015)
	
	Evaluating the Substance of Transactions Involving the Legal Form of a Lease
	
	2016

	TSIC 29 (revised 2015)
	
	Service Concession Arrangements Disclosure
	
	2016

	TSIC 31 (revised 2015)
	
	Revenue-Barter Transactions Involving Advertising Services
	
	2016

	TSIC 32 (revised 2015)
	
	Intangible Assets -Web Site Costs
	
	2016


Management expects to adopt and apply these new and revised TFRSs, which are relevant to their businesses in accordance with the FAP’s announcement and is presently considering the potential impact on the Unique Group’s financial statements of these new and revised TFRSs.

32.
APPROVAL OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Company’s directors have authorized these financial statements for issue on February 18, 2016.
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